
 DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

 
 

Community Services Center 
2074 Aurelius Road, Holt, MI  48842 

(517) 694-2137 
 
 

Tuesday 
October 18, 2016 

 
 

 
6:30 p.m. 

Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 

A. Ingham County Sheriff’s Office/Delhi Division – September 
Activity Report 
 

B. Fire Department –September Activity Report 
 

C. Community Development Department – September Activity 
Report 
 
 

 
  Public Comment 



 
 COUNTY of INGHAM 

 State of Michigan 

 SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
 

                Gene L. Wriggelsworth 
Sheriff 

 
 
Allan C. Spyke                  630 North Cedar Street     Greg S. Harless 
Undersheriff      Mason, Mi  48854                   Chief Deputy 
         (517) 676-2431 
Sam Davis                  FAX (517) 676-8299     Joel Maatman 
Major                           Major 
  

TO:   Delhi Township Board of Trustee’s  
        
FROM:    Lt. Dennis Hull 
 
DATE:     October 11, 2016  
 
RE:       September 2016 Monthly Report 
 
 
HIGHLIGHTED CASES AND INCIDENTS: 
 
9/1/16 Deputies were dispatched to the 4300 block of Dell Rd for a possible overdose. Upon arrival a 
male subject was unconscious and baily breathing. The subject had overdosed on Heroin. Delhi Fire 
administered Narcan and subject came out of the overdose. Delhi Fire transported the subject to the 
hospital for medical treatment. 
 
9/1/16 Deputy Belanger made a traffic stop on a vehicle at Willoughby and Pine Tree because the 
driver was swerving all over the road and the driver was thought to be intoxicated. It was quickly 
learned that the driver was not intoxicated but it was evident that he was under the influence of 
something. The driver did not admit to being under the influence of any controlled substance. The 
driver gave consent to search the vehicle. Methamphetamine and marijuana was found in the vehicle. 
The driver then admitted that the substance was his. He was arrested for possession of 
Methamphetamine and marijuana. He was lodged at ICJ. He is currently out on bond awaiting trial.  
 
9/2/16 Night shift Deputies were dispatched to Holt Jr High on Aurelius Rd for an alarm. Upon 
checking the school they found an open overhead door. They called for assistance from our K9 unit. 
Once the K9 arrived they searched the school and found two subjects hiding inside the  school. Both 
were arrested and lodged on Breaking and Entering. The interesting thing about this case is that the 
two subjects, one 18 yr/old and the other 14 yr/old decided that they wanted to play basketball at 
2:00 am in the morning so they went to the school to play. However  when they got to the school 
they realized that they couldn’t play basketball because they didn’t have a basketball. That is when 
they decided to check for unlocked doors. They found an overhead door not completely shut so they 

 



went into the school to look for a basketball. They found a basketball in the gym so they decided to 
play in the gym. When they got tired of playing basketball for 10 minutes they decided they would 
look around the school. This is when the Deputies found them hiding in the staff  lounge and arrested 
them without any further incident.  
 
9/6/16 Deputy Daza was dispatched to Prestwick Village, the new apartment complex under 
construction on Cedar St for a larceny of construction equipment. Two generators were taken from 
the back of a construction vehicle. They were taken sometime over the holiday weekend. The 
equipment was valued at $8000.00. At this time we do not have any witnesses or suspects in the 
case.  
 
9/10/16 Deputy Daza was at the corner of Holt and Cedar and noticed a male subject standing next to 
a bicycle waiting for the light to change. As he is watching the subject the male subject fell to the 
ground from the standing position. The male subject is well known by all of our Deputies and most 
generally is always intoxicated. Today was no different. Deputy Daza immediately activated his 
overhead patrol light and called for Delhi fire. The subject was bleeding from the forehead and as 
usual he was uncooperative with Deputy Daza. Medics arrived on scene and checked him for any 
type of medical condition, they found none. Deputy Daza asked him if he would submit to PBT so 
we could see what his intoxication level was and as usual he began to yell and swear. He was 
transported to the hospital by Delhi fire for Detox after he was issued a citation for Disorderly 
Conduct (public intoxication).  
 
9/21/16 Night shift was dispatched to the 2000 block of burton Ave for an active Domestic Assault 
in progress. Upon arrival all parties were separated and the suspect was in his bedroom. After all 
interviews were complete, it was determined that the 26 yr/old suspect had assaulted his older 
brother and his father. Both the older brother and the father had red lumps on their face and head. 
The suspect who was highly intoxicated at the time was arrested and lodged at ICJ. He is currently 
out on bond awaiting trial.   
 
9/27/16 Deputy Jackson was dispatched to the 6100 block of Morgan St for a Hit and Run complaint. 
Upon arrival Deputy Jackson was met in the driveway by the home owner who reported that he has 
allowed a female acquaintance of his to store a vehicle of hers in his drive way for the past few 
months. He said that he has been friends with her for 20 years. As of recently he has noticed her 
mood and behavior changing. He told Deputy Jackson that she showed up today to retrieve some 
items from the vehicle that is currently being stored in the driveway. He said when he went out to the 
driveway to greet her she attempted to run him over with her vehicle she arrived in, 2010 Chevrolet 
Impala. He was able to get out of her way and was not hit. She then backed out of the driveway and 
drove into the driveway of the neighbor across the street striking a parked car in the driveway. She 
then backed out of that driveway and left the area at a high rate of speed. She later returned on foot 
and got into the vehicle she was storing in the driveway and backed that vehicle into reporting 
party’s garage, knocking the overhead door off the track and breaking the door frame. She then drove 
away.  
Later in the day we received a call from Shroyers towing in reference to a car that is parked on their 
property that did not belong to them. The car was parked in the area where all the cars that are in the 
process of being crushed are stored. As it turns out the car was the 2010 Chevrolet Impala the female 
arrived in on Morgan St. As of today we have been unable to locate her but Deputy Jackson was able 
to get a 4 count felony warrant for her arrest and she has yet to contact Shoryers Towing about 
picking up her car that was left on their property.   



 
STATISTICS: 
 
During the month of September, Deputies responded to 352 calls for service (written and blotter  
complaints).  They made 77 arrests of which 33 were self – initiated, and 6 were for OWI.   
Deputies responded to 27 traffic crashes.  Deputies made 388 traffic stops and issued 144 citations.  
Deputies conducted 242business/property checks, 55 school contacts, and spent 193.1 hours in  
Community Policing. Deputies participated in 83.9 hours of training.  
  
 
     Calls for Service 
 
   2014   2015   2016 
 
Sept   390   364   352 
 
Year to Date  1098   1730   3237 
 
          Total Arrests  
 
   2014   2015   2016 
 
Sept     233   77   77 
 
Year to Date  793    396   728 
 
 
             Total Self – Initiated Arrests   
 
   2014   2015   2016 
 
Aug       71   221    61 
 
Year to Date   328   415   526 
 
 
            Citations Issued   
 
   2014   2015   2016 
 
 
July   220    219              144 
 
Year to Date   532    532   1623 
 
 
 
 



 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 COUNTY of INGHAM 

 State of Michigan 

 SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
 

Gene L. Wriggelsworth 
Sheriff 

 
 
Allan C. Spyke                  630 North Cedar Street     Greg S. Harless 
Undersheriff      Mason, Mi  48854                   Chief Deputy 
         (517) 676-2431 
Sam Davis                  FAX (517) 676-8299     Joel Maatman 
Major                           Major 
  

 
 
TO:   Lt. Dennis Hull 
 
FROM:  Deputy Matt Hutting #5312 
 
DATE:  Wednesday October 5, 2016   
 
RE:   September 2016 Monthly Report 
 
 
STATS: 
Complaints:    8 
School Checks:   48 
Community Policing Hours:  59.2 
Training Hours:   40 
 
SCHOOL EVENTS: 
On September 1st I worked the first Holt Football game.  I attended the hotdog fundraiser prior to the 
game and made contact with many Holt Public School staff members.  A fight broke out at the end of 
the football game with one HJHS student receiving injuries as a result.  The student  was turned over 
to her parents who sought out their own treatment for their student. 
 
On September 6th school started for the traditional school year schedule.  I made contact with only 
three of the schools as I had to start the day with an Assault and Battery investigation. 
 
On September 7th I participated in the Ingham County Health Departments Exercise Plan meeting at 
Holt High School.  The meeting was to further plans regarding a full-scale Place of Disbursement 
(POD) exercise.  The event is to be a mock set-up of a potential biological outbreak and using the 
High School of a disbursement center for medications and also possible treatment. 
 
On September 16th I assisted Holt Junior High School with their first Lockdown of the year.  The 

 



lockdown went down great.  There were no major issues to report. 
 
On September 23rd I organized the Ingham County Sheriff’s Office patrol aspect of the Holt 
Homecoming Parade.  The parade went well.  I led the parade and the turnout appeared to be pretty 
good.  Thanks to the Ingham County Sheriff’s Office Motor Unit for their assistance. 
 
On September 23rd I also worked the Holt Homecoming football game and dance.  There were 
several issues that occurred.  At the football game a minor fight broke out at the end of the game.  No 
injuries occurred.  At the Homecoming dance several issues occurred.  A female that was not 
allowed into the dance snuck in and had to be instructed to leave.  The female wanted to attempt to 
fight with me and with school staff but she was eventually walked out without a major incident 
occurring.  Furthermore several other non-students attempted to sneak in to the dance.  Two non-
student males initially did not want to leave and began to confront Assistant Principal Billingslea.  
They eventually were escorted out without incident.  Also, a minor altercation developed during the 
dance between two male students.  No punches were thrown and staff was able to separate the 
subjects without incident. 
 
COMMUNITY POLICING HIGHLIGHTS: 
During the month of September I attempted to make myself known as much as possible at several of 
the schools.  I attended the lunch hours of several schools to see and be seen by students and staff.  I 
even sat down with some students and ate lunch with them.  Furthermore, I randomly stopped at 
several schools just to meet staff and discuss any concerns that they may have had. 
 
On September 7th I met with a concerned citizen that was worried about the parking problems at 
Hope Middle School. The parent had problems with cars parking in many locations where parking 
was not allowed.  I was provided with photos she had taken of the parked vehicles and the problem 
areas she was concerned with.  After a long discussion, I informed her I would meet with Principal 
Goodman at Hope Middle School and see if there were any solutions that could be developed.  I did 
meet with Principal Goodman and she advised that many steps had already been taken and that she 
would send out another email to parents about proper drop-off/pick-up procedure. 
 
During the month of September I attempted to patrol several areas around the different schools that 
have school related parking problems. Problem areas were typically: Maple/Sycamore near Sycamore 
Elementary, Bond Rd. near Elliott Elementary, Park Lane near Hope Middle School and Laurelwood 
near Wilcox Elementary.   
 
I spent many hours researching the possibility of obtaining traffic batons for the crossing guards and 
the walking school bus parents in the school district.  On September 27th I received confirmation 
from Steve Schwartz of the Ingham County Sheriff’s Office Mounted Unit that they agreed to obtain 
and donate 20 traffic batons for the school district. 
 
COMPLAINTS: 
During the month of September I responded to 12 calls for service.  8 calls resulted in written 
complaints.  Calls taken included: an Assault and Battery at the HHS football game, a missing child 
from Washington Woods, a CPS referral from Horizon Elementary, a Civil Dispute/Trespassing at 
Wilcox Elementary, and several Civil Disputes at Holt High School. 
 
On September 1st I responded to a possible fight at the Holt High School Football game.  The 



investigation determined that 2 female Holt Junior High students got into a physical altercation 
behind the grand stands after the end of the football game.  A third student, a female Washington 
Woods student, joined in the altercation.  One female received injuries to her face resulting in a 
bloody nose.  The report was sent to the Ingham County Prosecutors Office for their review. 
 
On September 8th I responded to Washington Woods regarding a possible missing child.  Upon my 
arrival several staff members had a portion of the neighborhood to the east of Horizon Elementary 
cordoned off looking for the student.  The student was eventually found sitting on a bench in front of 
Washington Woods unharmed. 
 
On September 8th I responded to Holt Junior High School to advise them regarding a search warrant 
that was being executed on Aurelius just north of Sycamore.  As a precaution, deputies were placed 
inside Holt Junior High and Sycamore Elementary.  Furthermore, deputies were placed on the 
exterior of each school during the time the warrant was being executed.  Nothing of note occurred. 
 
On September 13th I received information of a possible child abuse case at Horizon Elementary.  An 
investigation was started and the information was turned over to Child Protective Services.  The 
investigation determined no criminal actions had occurred. 
 
On September 14th I responded to Wilcox Elementary regarding trouble with a subject in the parking 
lot.  The investigation determined that a male subject that had transported children to the school had 
been speaking loudly around students using inappropriate language and was not willing to follow 
proper drop-off procedures.  This subject had caused disturbances several times in the past including 
urinating in the parking lot.  Along with Principal Heuhs, I met with the subject and attempted to 
comprise an alternate plan to allow the subject to drop off the students without his being a 
disturbance.  The subject was not willing to work with the school and eventually he was served a no 
trespassing letter.  It should be noted that he had to be talked to on several other occasions after my 
initial contact with him. 
 
On September 15th I responded to a possible fight complaint at Holt High School.  The investigation 
determined that a verbal altercation did occur, however, no assault occurred.  Neither party nor their 
family wanted to seek assault charges. 
 
On September 16th I assisted Dep. Duling and CPS at an address in Windmill trailer park regarding a 
house that might have had methamphetamine in it.  The residence was believed to be the home of 
several Holt Public School students.  While on scene, I attempted to make contact with Holt Junior 
High to determine if the students had been attending regularly.  CPS eventually made contact with 
the home owner and were allowed entry into the house.  No children were at the residence.  CPS 
advised they would investigate the situation further. 
 
On September 19th I stood by at Holt High School while a possible harassment complaint was 
investigated.  The incident involved a video that was posted to facebook by some students.  The 
situation was resolved by the School staff and the parents did not request my presence. 
 
On September 20th I assisted Delhi units regarding a shots fired complaint that occurred in some 
woods at the south end of Rolling Ridge.  I immediately responded to Horizon Elementary and 
advised Principal Huard of the situation.  Dep. Huhn and myself stayed at the school until the 
situation cleared. 



 
On September 21st I was contacted by Assistant Principal Billingslea that he would need my presence 
during a parent meeting.  The parent was highly agitated with her child.  I maintained a presence 
during the meeting as the parent vocalized several threats to the child.  Nothing of note occurred. 
 
On September 23rd I assisted Dep. Duling with a runaway complaint.  The student was a Holt High 
School student and I attempted to obtain information from the school regarding the students’ 
attendance to narrow down the time frame the child was missing.  Information was provided to Dep. 
Duling which assisted him in locating the child. 
 
TRAINING: 
During the week of September 26th through September 30th I attended Basic School Resource Officer 
Training in Troy Michigan.  The training was presented by NASRO the National Association of 
School Resource Officers.  The training covered a wide variety of topics such as: The foundations of 
school-based law enforcement, ethics, the SRO as a guest speaker/mentor, violence and victimization 
with teens, school culture and environment and the trends that affect them, threat response, school 
safety and Emergency Operations Plans.  The class provided me the opportunity to talk/learn with 
many other school resource officers and how to better do our job.  I was able to hear situations that 
arose in other school districts that could be a future cause of concern for the Holt Public School 
District and various ways to deal with those problems.  Furthermore, I was provided information on 
numerous resources that are available to School Resource Officers that can assist in making the job 
easier. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Dep. Matt Hutting #5312 
Ingham County Sheriff’s Office 



 

 
COUNTY of INGHAM 

State of Michigan 

SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
 

Gene L. Wriggelsworth 
                                  Sheriff 

 
 
Allan C. Spyke    630 North Cedar Street                Greg S. Harless 
Undersheriff        Mason, Mi  48854                 Chief Deputy 
             (517) 676-2431 
Sam Davis       FAX (517) 676-8299     Joel Maatman 
 Major               Major   
    
 

TO:   Lt. Dennis Hull  
 
FROM:    Deputy Cheryl Huhn #5430 
 
DATE:     10/04/16 
 
RE:       September 2016 Monthly 
 
STATISTICS: 
Comm. Policing Hours:  32.5 
Complaints taken:        9 
Training:   8 
Traffic stops:   3  
Citations issued:  4 
Arrests:   1 
Contacts (school):  7 
Contacts (business):  12 
 
COMMUNITY POLICING ACTIVITY:  
I went to Edward Jones and had a meeting about the specifics of the 9-11 Hero Run with 
John Bush, Michael Grant, and Lt John Colbeck with Delhi Fire.  I went and made 
contact with Ken at Spartan Barricading to make sure that they would be willing to setup 
the barricades the day of the race.   Prior to the race I briefed with Bob Plesscher and 
other members of the Motor Division.  We went over the course and I gave them there 
traffic assignments.  When the race started I blocked traffic at the intersection of Aurelius 
and Holt Rd.  After the all the participants went past my location I moved and blocked 
traffic at Holt Rd and Maple St.  There were approximately 300 participants during the 
race.                 

 



 

 
I assisted Deputy Matt Hutting with traffic control during the Holt Homecoming Parade.  
I blocked the intersection of Aurelius Rd and Sycamore Rd with my bicycle during the 
parade.   
 
I spoke with Andrea Powell the manager at Huntley Villa. Andrea advised that she has 
not had any problems reported to the office in the past couple of weeks.     
 
I started planning for Trick or Treat in the Park.  This is going to take place on October 
30th from 2-4 pm at Veteran’s Memorial Gardens.  Deputy Matt Hutting, Deputy James 
Rowley and I are making a booth to represent Delhi Division Community Policing.  I 
went to the Meijer Store on S Pennsylvania Ave and applied for a donation.  Meijer 
provided me with a gift card to purchase candy to pass out for the event.   
           
I assisted Rob Dale with maintaining the Ingham County Sheriff’s Office // Delhi 
Division Facebook webpage.   
 
I patrolled the area of Dallas Ave, Summit St, Waston Ave, Michael St, and Hancock for 
vehicles disobeying the stop signs and speeding through the neighborhood.  I was able to 
collect the data from the speed signs that were placed in the neighborhood.  In looking at 
the data collected it showed the speed, peak hours of traffic, and the amount of traffic.  In 
the morning and evening hours the amount of traffic is substantially more than the rest of 
the day.  The speeds were not a high as what residents in the area thought the estimated 
speed of traffic coming or going through the area.  When I patrolled the area I made 
traffic stops on anyone I witnessed violating the motor vehicle code.       
 
I attended weekly meetings at 55th District Court for Sobriety Court 
 
I went to Windmill Park and made contact with Tracy and Denise in the office.  Tracy 
advised that there have been multiple issues in the park with juveniles.  Tracy advised 
that there are approximate 7-8 juvenile males that ride their bicycles around the park and 
hang out at the bus stop.  Tracy advised that she has been in contact with most of the 
involved juvenile’s parents.  Tracy advised that she has been told by multiple individuals 
that there is an adult female in the park that is hosting underage parties at her residence.  
This complaint is still under investigation.    
 
While Deputy Matt Hutting was away for training, I was the contact officer for the Holt 
Public Schools.  I spent several hours at the Holt High School and the Holt Junior High.  I 
went to Woodcreek School in Lansing and served a no trespass letter to a former Holt 
High School Student that had been causing problems on school property. On 
homecoming night the female student came to the football game and then had another 
student sneak her into the school for the homecoming dance.  Once inside the school the 
female started causing problems with other students and then she refused to listen to staff.     
 
I started planning Santa and the Elves 2016.  This year the event is going to take place on 
Thursday December 8th.  The Sheriff’s Office has been participating in this event for at 



 

least the past 10 years.  Deputies dress up as Santa Claus and elves.  Deputy James 
Rowley, Deputy Matt Hutting and I will be going to multiple venues in the Township to 
spread holiday cheer and pass out candy canes with residents of Delhi Township.   
   
OTHER MATTERS 
During the month of September I responded to 9 calls for service.  Some of these calls 
included a larceny, a welfare check, identity theft, assault, malicious destruction of 
property, vehicle accidents and a probation violation.       
 
On September 6th I took a late larceny complaint at the Delhi Township Office.  An 
employee at Delhi Township Park Department reported that someone drove a vehicle 
through the fence at the facility on Pine Tree Rd and stole a dump trailer.  The trailer was 
entered into the LEIN system as stolen.  No leads on possible suspects.       
 
On September 8th I responded to a malicious destruction of property complaint on Bush 
Gardens.  The complainant reported that he was gone over the weekend and sometime 
while he was gone someone turned on the garden hose on the backside of his residence.  
The hose was left on and water was flowing into the window well.  The basement of the 
residence filled with water coming from the window well.  No suspects were identified.   
 
On September 9th I took a late larceny complaint at the building site for Prestwick 
Village.  A paint sprayer was taken off from the jobsite over the holiday weekend.  
 
On September 9th went to PAR Rehabilitation Services on Patient Care Drive to assist 
Ingham County Probation with pickup up an individual with a probation violation 
warrant.  I made contact with the individual in question and he was taken into custody on 
a valid warrant.  I transported the individual to the Ingham County Jail where he was 
lodged.  
 
On September 19th I took a late fraud complaint that was reported by Adult Protective 
Services. DeAnn Moreno a case worker with APS reported that an elderly couple went to 
Bank of America to make a withdrawal from their account for a Publisher’s Clearing 
House scam.  The bank manager made contact with the couple and advised them that it 
was a scam and not to send the money.  Instead of getting cash the couple got a money 
order.  Lansing Police Department was called to the bank.  LDP Officer’s escorted the 
couple to their residence and again told the couple not to send the check because it was a 
scam.  The couple sent to money order in the mail against all advice that was given to 
them.  I followed up with the couple’s son.  The son reported that he knew his parents 
were out the money that they sent.  The son lives with his parents and he is in the process 
of trying to get power of attorney.   
 
On September 20th I took a check welfare complaint.  The secretary at Elliott Elementary 
reported that a 50 year old lady that residences close to the school kept coming to the 
school to see how her children were doing in their classes.  The secretary advised that she 
knew the female in question very well.  The secretary advised that the female was 
diagnosed with dementia approximately 1 year ago and it is getting worse at a fast rate.  I 



 

tried to make contact with the female and no one was at the residence.  I located the 
female walking her dogs down the sidewalk near the school.  The female was unable to 
tell what the date, year or who was the current president of the United States.  The female 
kept giving conflicting statements, the more she spoke.  The female did have electricity, 
water and food at her residence.  After I left the residence I made contact with the 
female’s case worker at Adult Protective Services.  The caseworker told me that she 
would be picking the female up in the morning to go to the courthouse for a guardianship 
hearing. Due to the severity of dementia, the case worker advised that the Judge would be 
issuing the female a guardian.   
 
On September 21st I took a walk in complaint of identity theft.  The reporting party 
advised someone in Delaware opened a bank account with his personal identification 
information.   
 
On September 29th I took a late assault complaint at the Delhi Township Office.  Two 
male students at the Holt Junior High got into a fight during lunch hour.  I made contact 
with the victim’s parents at the Delhi Office.  The parents wanted a report documented in 
case there were any additional bullying incidents in the future.    
 
On September 30th I took a suspicious situation complaint at the Holt Junior High School.  
A student was in possession of a small plastic baggie that contained a green leaf 
substance.  The student told other students that it was marijuana.  The student was located 
and he had the plastic baggie tucked in the waistband of his gym shorts.  I ran a field test 
on the green leafy substance and it did not test positive for THC (marijuana).  The student 
was suspended for 10 days for possessing a “look alike substance”.     
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Deputy Cheryl Huhn #5430 
 
   
 



 
COUNTY of INGHAM 

State of Michigan 

SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
 

Gene L. Wriggelsworth 
Sheriff 

 
 
Allan C. Spyke 630 North Cedar Street Greg S. Harless 
Undersheriff Mason, MI 48854 Chief Deputy 
 (517) 676-2431 
Sam Davis FAX (517) 676-8299 Joel Maatman 
Major  Major 
 

 

To:  Lieutenant Hull 
 
From:  Deputy Rowley 5378 
 
Date: October 5, 2016 
 
Re:  September 2016 Monthly Report 
 
 
Statistics: Criminal Complaints:  10 
  Complaint hours:    44.9 hours 
  Accident Reports:  0 
  Abandoned Vehicle Reports:  18 
  Business Community Policing hours: 33.6 hours 
  Training hours: 8.7 hours 
  Blotter Reports:  9 
  Business Checks:  62 
  Liquor Inspections:  9 
  Traffic Stops: 14   
  Citations:  5 
  Motorist Assist: 1 
  Arrests: 2 
 
I began the month on September 1st with an embezzlement from the Burger King at 2520 
E. Jolly Rd.  The management reported that an employee had removed money from the 
safe, opened a sealed money envelope, stole over six hundred dollars, the employee then 
placed the money into a different sealed money bag.  The manager later gave the envelope 
to another employee who went to deposit the money at a local bank.  The bank teller 
advised the second employee of the contents of the sealed money envelope and that did not 
match the numbers written on the outside of the envelope.  The district manager was 
notified and retrieved video showing the suspect taking the money from the safe.  The 
suspect had no authorization from management to be in the safe.  I addressed the security 



 
COUNTY of INGHAM 

State of Michigan 

SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
 

Gene L. Wriggelsworth 
Sheriff 

 
 
Allan C. Spyke 630 North Cedar Street Greg S. Harless 
Undersheriff Mason, MI 48854 Chief Deputy 
 (517) 676-2431 
Sam Davis FAX (517) 676-8299 Joel Maatman 
Major  Major 
 

 

of the safe and other monetary procedures with the district manager who stated there are 
procedures in place that were not followed by employees.  I have forwarded that report to 
the Ingham County Prosecuting Attorney for the felony charge of Larceny from a Building. 
 
Saturday, September 3rd I was assigned to OWI Enforcement in the Delhi Business District.  
I recorded twelve traffic stops and issued four citations from this work.  I made contact 
with two subjects on a traffic stop that had valid warrants.  One subject was out of pick up 
range of the other agency and I arrested the other individual and turned them over to the 
Lansing Police Department on their warrant. 
 
On Tuesday, September 6th I received a complaint of Retail Fraud at the Family Dollar 
Store 2380 N. Cedar St.  The store does not have internal surveillance video.  I have no 
leads to investigate further.  I wanted to take a moment to commend the store manager for 
recognizing the suspect looked suspicious upon entry to the store.  The manager stated to 
me that the man walked in with a back pack on.  The manager stated the suspicious part 
about the back pack was all the pockets were unzipped, to be easily filled with product.  
The manager also stated when he greeted the man at entry the man would no acknowledge 
or look at him.  The suspect just looked down and away.  The manager stated the suspect 
went directly to the back of the store out of his sight.  The manager the finished helping 
another customer and went to find the suspect.  The manager found the suspect kneeling 
on the floor in the back aisle of the store filling his back pack with cans of food.  The 
suspect then ran out of the store.  It was great work by the store manager to recognize all 
these signs directly at entry to the store. 
 
On Sunday, September 11th, I worked the Hero Run at the corner of Holt/Aurelius Roads 
in the business district.  This important event was well attended and seemed to be 
accomplished without a hitch.  The event brought in attendees from in and out of our 
community.  The event was centered near and around the Holt Aurelius Plaza. 
 
Tuesday, September 13th, I was dispatched to the Burger King on Jolly Rd. regarding a 
trouble with subject.  I made contact with a manager who was in a heated verbal argument 
with a patron.  I spoke with both parties and provided the district manager’s telephone 



 
COUNTY of INGHAM 

State of Michigan 

SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
 

Gene L. Wriggelsworth 
Sheriff 

 
 
Allan C. Spyke 630 North Cedar Street Greg S. Harless 
Undersheriff Mason, MI 48854 Chief Deputy 
 (517) 676-2431 
Sam Davis FAX (517) 676-8299 Joel Maatman 
Major  Major 
 

 

number for complaint purposes.  The patron left the establishment and advised he would 
follow up with the district manager to lodge a complaint. 
 
That same day I was dispatched to an unwanted subject at the Burger King on N. Cedar St.  
I made contact with the manager and another patron.  The dispute was regarding the 
money transaction.  I provided the district manager’s telephone number and also made 
contact with the district manager to inquire about their procedure regarding the audit for 
a transaction.  The patron advised she would follow up with the district manager regarding 
the transaction. 
 
On Wednesday, September 14th, I was assigned to a district court probation violation 
warrant check at 1054 Wentland Dr.  I made contact with the suspect who registered a 
blood alcohol on PBT.  I arrested the suspect then transported him to the Ingham County 
Jail at the direct request of his probation officer. 
 
Thursday, September 15th, I took an embezzlement complaint from Mainstreet Concrete, 
LLC. 2631 Eaton Rapids Rd.  The reporting party stated an employee had taken two 
concrete jobs, not reported them to the company, then had billed the clients the total price 
and kept the money while not completing either job.  Mainstreet Concrete now has to 
complete the jobs without the money paid.  The suspect employee quit Mainstreet Concrete 
and the jobs were discovered following his termination.  I have completed the warrant 
packet and forwarded it to the Ingham County Prosecutor for felony embezzlement 
charges. 
 
September 29th I received an assault complaint from an employee at the McDonalds at 2400 
N. Cedar St.  I interviewed the reporting party who showed no external signs of the assault 
and required no medical treatment.  I then interviewed the suspect at his residence on 
Cutter Court in Lansing.  I completed a report on the incident and forwarded it to the 
Ingham County Prosecutors office for review of simple assault.  The assault was the suspect 
waving his hand as the reporting party was pointing at him.   
 



 
COUNTY of INGHAM 

State of Michigan 

SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
 

Gene L. Wriggelsworth 
Sheriff 

 
 
Allan C. Spyke 630 North Cedar Street Greg S. Harless 
Undersheriff Mason, MI 48854 Chief Deputy 
 (517) 676-2431 
Sam Davis FAX (517) 676-8299 Joel Maatman 
Major  Major 
 

 

On September 29th, I received a walk in complaint of Larceny at the Delhi Office.  The 
reporting party stated she had some personal items taken from her home.  The reporting 
party told me she had no idea who took them or really when they were taken.  The 
reporting party told me she needed the police report for her insurance company. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Deputy James Rowley 5378 
Delhi Township Division 
 
 
 
 

 
         
         
         
         

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 



 
Delhi Township Fire Department 
Monthly Report    September, 2016 

 
Total Calls 

 
 Delhi Alaiedon Total 

EMS / Medical 230 0 230 
Fire / Rescue 63 0 63 

Total Calls 293 0 293 
Staff Hours 534.82 0 534.82 

 
Total calls in 2016: 2,412 
Total calls for 2015:3,342 

 
Inspections 
 
Commercial Fire Inspections – 41 
Plan Reviews – (including Alaiedon) 

 
Training 
 
267 Personnel participated in 393.75 Hours of Training 

 
 
 Mutual Aid:    Given – 21    Received – 12 Auto Aid- 33 

Overlapping Calls - 85 
 
 
 
 
 
Miscellaneous 

• .Sept 2 Cedar/Aurelius car vs pedestrian MVA 
• Sept 11 College/Cedar MVA with extrication 
• Sept 20 4000 Blk Pine Dell Kitchen Fire 
• Sept 26 1500 Blk Tagalak Building Fire 

 

























DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 
2074 Aurelius Road, Holt 48842   (517) 694-2137 

Tuesday, October 18, 2016 
7:30 p.m. 

Agenda 
 
Call the Meeting to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call 
Comments from the Public – FOR COMPLETE GUIDELINES FOR ADDRESSING THE BOARD, PLEASE SEE “PROCEDURES 
FOR ADDRESSING THE BOARD” LOCATED AT THE BACK TABLE.  ANYONE WISHING TO COMMENT ON ANY MATTER UNOT U ON THE AGENDA 
MAY DO SO AT THIS TIME.  UALL COMMENTS WILL BE DIRECTED ONLY TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD MEMBERSU AND PERSONS ADDRESSING 
THE BOARD MUST STATE THEIR NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD AND WILL BE GIVEN TWO (2) MINUTES.  ANY COMMENTS 
LONGER THAN 2 MINUTES SHOULD BE REDUCED TO WRITING AND SUBMITTED TO THE CLERK AND WILL BE MADE A PART OF THE 
RECORD. 
USet/Adjust Agenda 
 
 
 
Public Hearing – 7:45 p.m. – FY 2017 – General Fund and Special Revenue Funds 
 
 
Unfinished Business 
 
 
Consent Agenda 
1. a)  Approval of Minutes – Committee Meeting of October 4, 2016 

b) Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of October 4, 2016 
c) Approval of Claims – October 11, 2016 
d) Approval of Payroll – October 6, 2016 
e) 2017 Holiday Schedule 

 
 

Zoning and Development 
2. Special Use Permit No. 16-280 – Thompson’s Garage – 1375 N. Cedar Street – Tax Parcel  

#33-25-05-25-101-011 – Auto Repair and Service Facility 
3. Special Use Permit No. 16-281 – Ray’s Driveway Sealing – 5822 Harper Road – Tax Parcel  

#33-25-05-29-300-030 – Contractor’s Office 
 

 
New Business 
4. Interagency Cash Transfer Agreement between Delhi Township and Michigan Rehabilitation  

Services 
5. Amendment No. 1 to Resolution No. 2016-020 – Consumers Energy Change in Standard  

Streetlights Contract – Request No. 1020982336 – Audit of Streetlights in Delhi 
Township 

 
 

 



 
Items Removed From Consent Agenda For Discussion 
 
 
 
 
Late Agenda Items 
6.  
7.  
8.  
 
 
 
Reports 
9. Supervisor:  
10. Treasurer:  
11. Clerk:    
12. Trustees:  
13. Manager:    

 
 

 
Limited Comments 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE AFFORDED THE OPPORTUNITY TO ADDRESS THE BOARD REGARDING ANY ITEM ON THE AGENDA AT 
THE TIME SUCH ITEM IS OPEN FOR DISCUSSION BY THE BOARD.  ANYONE WISHING TO COMMENT ON ANY MATTER NOT ON THE AGENDA 
MAY DO SO AT THIS TIME. 
 
Adjournment 
The Township will provide reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as interpreters for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of 
printed materials considered at the meeting for the visually impaired, for individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon five (5) working 
days notice to the Township.  Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact Delhi Charter Township, 
Evan Hope, Township Clerk, 694-2135. 
 
ALL PAGERS, CELL PHONES, RADIOS AND SIMILAR DEVICES ARE TO BE TURNED OFF OR TO SILENT MODE DURING ALL 
BOARD MEETINGS. 



General Special Debt Enterprise Component
Description Fund Revenue Service Fund Units Total
Revenue

Taxes 3,173,000$     2,139,300$  -$       -$               1,603,180$  6,915,480$    
Licenses and Permits 320,700          -               -         176,200         -               496,900         
Grants & Revenue Sharing 2,256,770       38,400         -         491,250         4,000           2,790,420      
Intergovernmental-Local 138,810          -               108,820  -                 30,000         277,630         
Charges for services 593,460          25,000         -         6,042,840      -               6,661,300      
Other Revenue 1,385,710       18,770         -         80,320           15,820         1,500,620      
Fines & Forfeitures 18,000            55,000         -         -                 -               73,000           
Interest & Rentals 29,300            100              -         20,780           34,980         85,160           
Franchise Fees 515,300          -               -         -                 -               515,300         

Total Revenue 8,431,050    2,276,570    108,820  6,811,390      1,687,980    19,315,810    

Expenditures
General Government 2,527,830    -               -         -                 -               2,527,830      
Public Safety -               5,220,210    -         -                 -               5,220,210      
Parks and Recreation 900,390       -               -         -                 -               900,390         
Community & Econ Dev 735,150       -               -         -                 443,940       1,179,090      
Public Works 1,890,680    2,600           -         4,626,090      50,000         6,569,370      
Other 550,500       -               -         -                 313,290       863,790         
Debt Service 731,660       73,450         108,820  1,881,390      789,360       3,584,680      
Capital Outlay 2,370,800  20,000         -         1,938,860      540,000       4,869,660      

Total Expenditures 9,707,010    5,316,260    108,820  8,446,340      2,136,590    25,715,020    

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (1,275,960)   (3,039,690)   -         (1,634,950)     (448,610)      (6,399,210)     

Other Financing Sources
Sale of Fixed Assets 80,000         -               -         24,500           -               104,500         
Operating Transfers In -               2,990,510    -         -                 701,510       3,692,020      
Bond/Loan Proceeds 537,400       -               -         -                 -               537,400         

Total Otr Financing Sources 617,400       2,990,510    -         24,500           701,510       4,333,920      

Other Financing Uses
Operating Transfers Out 2,990,510    -               -         -                 701,510       3,692,020      

Total Other Financing Uses 2,990,510    -               -         -                 701,510       3,692,020      

Change in Fund Balance (3,649,070)   (49,180)        -         (1,610,450)     (448,610)      (5,757,310)     

Beginning Fund Balance 6,962,942    344,713       -         32,983,795    3,113,290    43,404,740    

Ending Fund Balance 3,313,872$  295,533$     -$       31,373,345$  2,664,680$  37,647,430$  

Expenditure Increases after 10/4/16 Committee of the Whole:
H.S.A. Funding 17,500         10,500         -         9,500             -               37,500           
Incr Trans to Fire Fund 10,500         -               -         -                 -               10,500           
Addition of R.H.S. to IT 1,250           -               -         -                 -               1,250             
Rounding 20                -               -         -                 -               20                  
Total Increase 29,270         10,500         -         9,500             -               49,270           

All Funds Combined Summary
Revenues, Expenditures, and Fund Balance

2017 Budget With H.S.A. Funding Added



 

 

Recommended Motion: 
 
To approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
 
 



DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 4, 2016 

 

 1

S
U

B
JE

C
T 

TO
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L 

The members of the Delhi Charter Township Committee of the Whole met on Tuesday, October 
4, 2016 in the Multipurpose Room at the Community Services Center, 2074 Aurelius Road, Holt, 
MI.  Clerk Hope called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
  
Members Present:  Clerk Evan Hope, Treasurer Roy Sweet, Trustees Jon Harmon, John 

Hayhoe, Megan Ketchum, DiAnne Warfield 
 

Members Absent: Supervisor C.J. Davis 
 

 
BUSINESS 
 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES - SEPTEMBER ACTIVITY REPORT 
 
The Board reviewed the September Department of Public Services Activity Report 
(ATTACHMENT I).  
 
 
FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET DISCUSSION 
 
Twp. Mgr. Elsinga referred to several major changes to the 2017 budgeted items. Twp. Mgr. 
Elsinga stated that several aging sewer components will need to be replaced. The Downtown 
Development Authority has done some property acquisitions and will be assisting with a trail 
head park on Cedar Street. Additional staffing will be hired in the Fire Department and Parks 
Department. 
 
Trustee Harmon stated that he would like to see the Township reinvest in their employees by 
contributing 25% of their health care deductable to their Health Savings Accounts to help offset 
the high deductable health care plan that the Township offers its employees. Trustee Harmon 
proposed this contribution only to employees that take the Township’s health insurance. 
 
Treasurer Sweet asked if benefits would be reviewed during the Classification and 
Compensation Study that the employees are currently working on. Twp. Mgr. Elsinga stated that 
the study is a compensation and benefits study from which the Board can determine how to 
implement the findings of the survey.   
 
Trustee Harmon suggested a place holder of $40,000 in the 2017 budget so when the results of 
the survey are returned, the Board can take action if they so decide. Clerk Hope questioned the 
reasoning of making this a place holder rather than including the funding of a portion of the 
employee’s Health Savings Account in the 2017 budget. Trustee Harmon stated that he would 
approve the funding even before seeing the study results. Trustee Harmon further stated that 
this could be a way to retain current employees and possibly attract new employees. Treasurer 
Sweet stated that he would prefer to wait until seeing the results of the study. 
 
Trustee Hayhoe stated that some area municipalities have incurred legacy costs and though he 
appreciates the staff, he is happy that the Township does not have legacy costs. Trustee 
Harmon stated that this contribution would not create legacy costs as he is only proposing a 
onetime contribution. Trustee Hayhoe stated that it is difficult to take a contribution away from 
staff once it’s given. Trustee Harmon stated that when the Township first changed to the high 
deductable health care plan, staff was told their deductable would be funded (up to $2,000) but 



DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 4, 2016 

 

 2

S
U

B
JE

C
T 

TO
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L 

that was later rolled back and now is not being funded at all, so the contribution has been taken 
away from staff already. 
 
Twp. Mgr. Elsinga stated that he feels a place holder would be a neutral position to take until the 
study comes back.  
 
Trustee Warfield asked the timeline of the study. Wendy Thielen, Assistant Twp. Mgr. of Human 
Resources, stated that staff is currently working on their job analysis. It is anticipated that these 
analyses will be forwarded to the consultant at the end of November. The consultant will 
compile the survey and disseminated the survey to area communities. It is anticipated that the 
results will not be returned to the Township until after the first part of 2017. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 
 
 
Date:      October 18, 2016        
  Evan Hope, Township Clerk 
 
 
Date:  October 18, 2016       
   C.J. Davis, Supervisor 
/af 



DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 4, 2016 

 

 9858 
 

S
U

B
JE

C
T 

TO
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L 

Delhi Charter Township Board of Trustees met in a regular meeting on Tuesday, October 4, 
2016 in the Multipurpose Room at the Community Services Center, 2074 Aurelius Road, Holt, 
Michigan.  Clerk Hope called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Clerk Evan Hope, Treasurer Roy Sweet, Trustees Jon Harmon, John 

Hayhoe, Megan Ketchum, DiAnne Warfield 
 
Members Absent: Supervisor C.J. Davis 
 
 
APPOINT CHAIRPERSON PRO-TEM 
 

Hope moved to appoint Trustee Harmon as Chairperson Pro-Tem. 
 

A Voice Poll was recorded as follows:  All Ayes 
Absent:  Davis 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC – None 
 
 
CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION – REX SIMONS 
 
Clerk Hope presented Rex Simons with a Certificate of Appreciation upon his retirement. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
A. Approval of Minutes – Committee Meeting of September 20, 2016 
 
B. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of September 20, 2016 
 
C. Approval of Claims –  September 27, 2016 (ATTACHMENT I) 
 
D. Approval of Payroll –  September 22, 2016 (ATTACHMENT II) 

 
E. FY 2017 Budgets - Set Public Hearing – General Fund and Special Revenue Funds 

(ATTACHMENT III) 
 

Warfield moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
 

A Roll Call Vote was recorded as follows: 
Ayes: Warfield, Harmon, Hayhoe, Hope, Ketchum, Sweet 
Absent: Davis 
MOTION CARRIED 



DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 4, 2016 

 

 9859 
 

S
U

B
JE

C
T 

TO
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-025 – TO POSTPONE THE CONSTRUCTION OF A REQUIRED 
SIDEWALK – 3440 DUNCKEL ROAD 
 
The Board reviewed memorandums dated September 27, 2016 from Twp. Mgr. Elsinga and 
September 28, 2016 from Tracy Miller, Director of Community Development (ATTACHMENT IV). 
 

Hayhoe moved to adopt Resolution No. 2016-025 which postpones the 
construction of a required sidewalk along property owned by Klein Brothers, LLC 
and located at 3440 Dunckel Road and requires the property owner to execute a 
Sidewalk Agreement stating the same.  

 
A Roll Call Vote was recorded as follows: 
Ayes:  Harmon, Hayhoe, Hope, Ketchum, Sweet, Warfield 
Absent: Davis 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-026 – APPROVE AND SUPPORT A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE 
INGHAM COUNTY TRAILS AND PARKS MILLAGE PROGRAM 
 
The Board reviewed a memorandum dated September 28, 2016 from Tracy Miller, Director of 
Community Development (ATTACHMENT V). 
 

Hope moved to adopt Resolution No. 2016-026 which approves and supports the 
Grant Application to the Ingham County Trails and Parks Millage Program for the 
Ram2Burchfield Trail Project. 

 
A Roll Call Vote was recorded as follows: 
Ayes: Hayhoe, Hope, Ketchum, Sweet, Warfield, Harmon 
Absent: Davis 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-027 – ISSUANCE OF AN INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
– DELHI TOWNSHIP/HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL, INC. ENERGY SAVINGS PROJECT 
 
The Board reviewed a memorandum dated September 29, 2016 from Twp. Mgr. Elsinga 
(ATTACHMENT VI). 
 

Sweet moved to adopt Resolution No. 2016-027 authorizing the issuance of an 
Installment Purchase Agreement in the amount not to exceed $4,345,000 for the 
Delhi Township/Honeywell International, Inc. Energy Savings Project.  
 

A Roll Call Vote was recorded as follows: 
Ayes: Hope, Ketchum, Sweet, Warfield, Harmon, Hayhoe 
Absent: Davis 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 4, 2016 

 

 9860 
 

S
U

B
JE

C
T 

TO
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP AND HONEYWELL 
INTERNATIONAL, INC. – ENERGY SAVINGS PROJECT 
 
The Board reviewed a memorandum dated September 29, 2016 from Twp. Mgr. Elsinga 
(ATTACHMENT VII). 
 

Ketchum moved to approve the Agreement between Delhi Charter Township and 
Honeywell International, Inc. for the Delhi Township Energy Savings Project, 
subject to legal counsel approval, at a cost not to exceed $4,345,000 to be funded 
through an Installment Purchase Agreement utilizing a Qualified Energy 
Conservation Bond grant. 

 
A Roll Call Vote was recorded as follows: 
Ayes: Ketchum, Sweet, Warfield, Harmon, Hayhoe, Hope 
Absent: Davis  
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
REPORTS 
 
CLERK 
 
Clerk Hope reported that Absentee Ballots were mailed on September 30, 2016. The Clerk’s 
Office encourages voters to obtain an Absentee Ballot if they anticipate being out of the 
Township on Election Day or if they meet any of the other State mandated requirements for 
obtaining an Absentee Ballot as a large turnout is anticipated for this election. 
 
TOWNSHIP MANAGER 
 
Twp. Mgr. Elsinga stated that in the near future the Board will be asked for their support to 
participate with the DDA on the purchase of property located at 4410 Holt Road. 
 
 
LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENTS – None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Date:   October 18, 2016           
        Evan Hope, Township Clerk 
 
Date:   October 18, 2016           
        C.J. Davis, Supervisor 
/af 



U:Accounting Private\Payables\Accounts Payable Approval Form
CC: Central File

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE APPROVAL
October 11, 2016

Dated:  October 11, 2016
                                   Lora Behnke, Accounting Clerk

II.  Certification of Fund Totals:

General Fund 116,857.74$          
Fire Fund 11,505.23              
Police Fund 2,770.00                
Water Improvement Fund 2,180.00                
Fire Equip. & Apparatus Fund 5,121.49                
Downtown Development Fund 9,245.48                
Sewer Fund 75,788.20              
Trust & Agency Fund 250.00                   
Current Tax Fund 18,994.76              

Grand Total 242,712.90$          

Includes the following to be reimbursed from separate bank accounts:

Current Tax Fund 18,994.76$            
Dated:  October 11, 2016           

John B. Elsinga, Township Manager

 
Dated:  October 11, 2016 `

John B. Elsinga, Township Manager

Evan Hope, Township Clerk

Roy W. Sweet, Treasurer

IV Board Audit and Approval:  At a regular meeting of the Township Board held on October 18, 2016 a motion was
made by _______________________and passed by ____yes votes and ____no votes (______absent) that the
list of claims dated October 11, 2016, was reviewed, audited and approved

                         
Evan Hope, Township Clerk

I.  Certification of Authorized Signatures:  The attached Check Register and Invoice Distribution Report encompass 
checks dated September 30, & October 11, 2016 numbered 92151 thru 92202  & ACH 4513 thru 4537.   Every invoice 
has a payment authorizing signature(s).

The attached Invoice Distribution Report and Check Register for checks dated October 11, 2016 show payments made from the 
following funds:

III.  Approval for Distribution: I have reviewed the above checks and invoices and all of them should be distributed.  All  
invoices over $10,000.00 have been approved by general policy or previous motions of the board. (**$10,635.28 to Alexander 
Chemical for Calcium Nitrate, $10,684.50 to Hubbell, Roth & Clark for Ram Trail Phase II Engineering, 2/2/16, ** $10,526.68 to 
Thrun Law Firm for September Legal Fees** To Be Approved By Consent)) 



INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 09/30/2016 - 10/11/2016

Vendor Invoice Line Desc Amount

Fund 101 GENERAL FUND
Dept 000.00 
BANK OF AMERICA CANON REFUND FOR OVERCHARGE (274.70)
CITY OF MASON FIRE RUN LAMB & SIMMONS 600.00
CITY OF MASON STANDBY FEE JULY 600.00
CITY OF MASON STANDBY FEE AUGUST 600.00
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP FIRE ALAIEDON STANDBY FEE JULY 1,000.00
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP FIRE 4 INCIDENTS JULY 3,300.00
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP FIRE ALAIEDON STANDBY FEE AUGUST 1,000.00
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP FIRE INCIDENTS AUGUST 2,100.00
MARY WOOD AMBULANCE REFUND 361.79

Total For Dept 000.00 9,287.09

Dept 171.00 MANAGER
BANK OF AMERICA 250 BUSINESS CARDS/ELSINGA 46.50
ADP SCREENING & SELECTION SESUBSCRIPTION/BACKGROUND CHECKS 31.13
BANK OF AMERICA PARKING/ELSINGA 4.00
BANK OF AMERICA MPELR LODGING/THIELEN 338.97

Total For Dept 171.00 MANAGER 420.60

Dept 191.00 ACCOUNTING
BANK OF AMERICA MGFOA LODGING/MEREDITH 321.86

Total For Dept 191.00 ACCOUNTING 321.86

Dept 215.00 CLERK
BANK OF AMERICA 250 LETTERHEAD/CLERK 106.90
MICHIGAN.COM PUBLISHING LEGALS AUGUST 288.56
MICHIGAN.COM PUBLISHING LEGALS 905.64

Total For Dept 215.00 CLERK 1,301.10

Dept 228.00 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP-I.T. YELLOW INK CARTRIDGES 23.28
DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP-I.T. YELLOW INK CARTRIDGES 9.20
DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP-I.T. 5 INK CARTRIDGES 124.95
DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP-I.T. INK CARTRIDGE 10.99
DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP-I.T. GAGABIT ETHERNET SWITCH 26.00
APPLICATION SPECIALIST KO MONTHLY HARDWARE & SOFTWARE 3,377.00
ACD.NET, INC. ACD FIBER MONTHLY 616.00
APPLICATION SPECIALIST KO SITE LABOR/TREASURER & CLERK 250.00
APEX SOFTWARE YEARLY SUPPORT APEX/ASSESSING 1,025.00
THOMSON REUTERS YEARLY SUPPORT FEES 290.00
DELL MARKETING L.P. NEW SERVER FROM DELL 8,844.61

Total For Dept 228.00 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 14,597.03



Dept 257.00 ASSESSING
LANSING ICE & FUEL CO GASOLINE  9/16-30/2016 19.40
BANK OF AMERICA 7 LOGO SHIRTS/FIELD STAFF 166.97
THRUN LAW FIRM, P.C. LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2,121.20
DELTA CHARTER TOWNSHIP ASSESSING FEES OCTOBER 2,000.00
VERTALKA & VERTALKA, INC. MMT APPRAISAL SERVICES 5,500.00

Total For Dept 257.00 ASSESSING 9,807.57

Dept 262.00 ELECTIONS
DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS OFFICE SUPPLIES 97.81
BANK OF AMERICA 9 ROLLS FUTURE VOTER LABELS 63.69
PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC. 5,000 AV SERECY ENVELOPES 450.00
PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC. 25 AV OUTSIDE AIR MAIL ENVELOPES 8.00
PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC. 25 AV INSIDE AIR MAIL ENVELOPES 8.00
PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC. FREIGHT 102.40
PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC. 2,500 QVF MASTER CARDS 72.50
PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC. FREIGHT 16.90
HOLT POSTMASTER POSTAGE MONEY 3,800.00

Total For Dept 262.00 ELECTIONS 4,619.30

Dept 265.00 BUILDING & GROUNDS
LANSING ICE & FUEL CO GASOLINE 9/16-30/2016 125.54
MODEL COVERALL SERVICE UNIFORMS/ B & G 21.69
MODEL COVERALL SERVICE UNIFORMS/B & G 21.69
QUALITY FIRST MAID SERVICE CLEANING SERVICES/CSC 975.00
METRONET LONG DISTANCE LONG DISTANCE SEPTEMBER 20.83
TDS METROCOM LOCAL SERVICE SEPTEMBER 1,100.94
BANK OF AMERICA 6 CONCRETE REPAIR EPOXY/CSC 1,463.96
BANK OF AMERICA 8 CONCRETE REPAIR EPOXY/CSC 1,165.60
BOYNTON FIRE SAFETY SERV EXT. RECHARGE 185.00
WESCO DISTRIBUTION, INC (2) 20A GE BREAKERS/CSC 24.00
PURE GREEN LAWN & TREE FERT/WEED CONTROL@CSC 690.00
PURE GREEN LAWN & TREE FERT/WEED CONTRO/GRUB CONTROL 1,039.00
D & G EQUIPMENT INC 6 BLADES/6 WHL KITS/2 SWITCHES 249.81
TASMANIAN TIRE CO. TIRE/TRACTOR 148.50
PROGRESSIVE SURVEILLANCE 50% DOWN/SURVELLIANCE SYSTEM/ CSC 4,768.46

Total For Dept 265.00 BUILDING & GROUNDS 12,000.02

Dept 281.00 STORMWATER
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 1,388.88
HTA COMPANIES, INC. STREET SWEEPING 1,950.00

Total For Dept 281.00 STORMWATER 3,338.88

Dept 446.00 INFRASTRUCTURE
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC RIVER POINTE SUBDIVISION PAVING SAD 3,772.80
BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT STREETLIGHTS 7,754.39
CONSUMERS ENERGY STREETLIGHTS ACCT#6730 19,424.25
CONSUMERS ENERGY STREETLIGHTS ACCT#7043 91.48
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC RAM TRAIL PHASE II PLANS & SPEC 10,684.50
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC RAM 2 BURCHFIELD GRANT APPLICATION 1,314.30

Total For Dept 446.00 INFRASTRUCTURE 43,041.72



Dept 721.00 PLANNING/COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BANK OF AMERICA 2 WORKPANTS FOR MASTIN 108.00
BANK OF AMERICA AAA 16 PK DURACELL BATTERIES 14.99
LANSING ICE & FUEL CO GASOLINE 9/16-30/2016 91.79
THRUN LAW FIRM, P.C. LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 1,191.20
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 3440 DUNCKEL RD KLEIN BROTHERS LLC STU 428.49
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC SPARROW HEALTH STUDY PLAN REVIEW 389.10
METRONET LONG DISTANCE LONG DISTANCE SEPTEMBER 14.41
VERIZON WIRELESS CELLULAR SEPTEMBER 10.46
TDS METROCOM LOCAL SERVICE SEPTEMBER 55.95
MICHIGAN.COM PUBLISHING LEGALS 139.52
BANK OF AMERICA CAR WASH/#57 8.00
SCHAFER'S INC. MOWING 4590 DEAN 34.50
SCHAFER'S INC. MOWING 2125 AURELIUS 51.75
SCHAFER'S INC. MOWING 4212 HOLT 34.50

Total For Dept 721.00 PLANNING/COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 2,572.66

Dept 752.00 PARKS ADMINISTRATION
METRONET LONG DISTANCE LONG DISTANCE SEPTEMBER 0.61
VERIZON WIRELESS CELLULAR SEPTEMBER 0.83
TDS METROCOM TELEPHONES/SENIOR CENTER 297.75
TDS METROCOM LOCAL SERVICE SEPTEMBER 98.12
MSU PESTICIDE APP EXAM STUDY BOOKS/ 77.00

Total For Dept 752.00 PARKS ADMINISTRATION 474.31

Dept 771.00 PARKS
LANSING ICE & FUEL CO GASOLINE 9/16-30/2016 767.28
MODEL COVERALL SERVICE UNIFORM PANTS/PARKS 42.56
MODEL COVERALL SERVICE UNIFORM PANTS/PARKS 42.56
BANK OF AMERICA 2 AIR RATCHET WRENCHES/2 JACKS/ 338.82
MENARDS LANSING SOUTH TOOLS 375.18
LANSING SANITARY SUPPLY SOAP, DISPENSERS, SUPPLIES 748.09
AMERICAN RENTALS, INC. PORTABLE TOILET/VALHALLA 140.00
AMERICAN RENTALS, INC. PORTABLE TOILET/TRAIL HEAD 140.00
AMERICAN RENTALS, INC. PORTABLE TOILET/MIDWAY ELEMENTARY 80.00
QUALITY FIRST MAID SERVICE CLEANING SERVICES/SENIOR CENTER 260.00
SAFETY SYSTEMS, INC REPAIR SWIPE READER/ SR CENTER 232.00
CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC 2074 AURELIUS #PARK 2,668.32
CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC 1771 MAPLE 87.59
DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP-I.T. HAND DRYER 267.50
MENARDS LANSING SOUTH LUMBER 15.67
MENARDS LANSING SOUTH LUMBER 21.99
PURE GREEN LAWN & TREE FERT/WEED CONTROL @JR HIGH FIELD 110.00
THE FLOWER GARDEN FLOWERS 34.10
LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES PLANTS 62.29
LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES FLOWERS 113.34
MENARDS LANSING SOUTH FLOWERS/PLANTS 37.89
MENARDS LANSING SOUTH FLOWERS/PUMPKINS/GLOVES 37.12
BANK OF AMERICA 2 TUBES/4100 TORO 17.98
D & G EQUIPMENT INC 2 PUMP DRIVE BELTS/EXMARK 39.98
SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS, INC TUBES/BLADES/HOSE/HUBS/SCREWS/ 304.88
SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS, INC HISE/2 HUBS/FREIGHT 261.73
FRANKIE D'S AUTO & TRUCK LO/#66 35.00
THE PARTS PLACE (2) 40 LB OIL DRY 20.98
ACE HARDWARE FLY TRAPS/MAINTENANCE 4.49

Total For Dept 771.00 PARKS 7,307.34



Dept 774.00 RECREATION
PIONEER ATHLETICS 30 ATHLETIC FIELD PAINT & SHIPPING 1,496.85
PIONEER ATHLETICS SPRAY TIP & GUN PAINT LINE 141.90
BANK OF AMERICA MRPA REGISTRATION/TILMA 40.00

Total For Dept 774.00 RECREATION 1,678.75

Dept 850.00 OTHER FUNCTIONS
BANK OF AMERICA 1,000  #10 BLANK ENVELOPES 37.60
DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS OFFICE SUPPLIES 350.60
THRUN LAW FIRM, P.C. LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 3,228.00
RICOH USA, INC. RICOH MAINT AGREEMENT 8/29 THRU 9/28 113.90
BANK OF AMERICA WUFOO SUBSCRIPTION 0/26-10/26/2016 9.00
BANK OF AMERICA GIS WEB HOSTING 9/10-10/9/2016 1.00
BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS WEB HOSTING 9/10-12/9/2016 65.85
BANK OF AMERICA MUSIC SERVICE/CSC 26.95
BANK OF AMERICA FACEBOOK ADS 750.17
BANK OF AMERICA FACEBOOK ADS 747.61
BANK OF AMERICA DONUTS & ROLLS/QTRLY MEETING 30.48
BANK OF AMERICA REFRESHMENTS/SS PRESENTATION 32.89
BANK OF AMERICA REFRESHMENTS QTRLY MEETING 27.66
BANK OF AMERICA NAPKINS/PAPER PLATES/BUDGET 8.08
BANK OF AMERICA ACA RENEWAL 197.10
SIGNS BY CRANNIE LED SIGN DIAGNOSIS 255.00
RICOH USA, INC RICOH MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT/NOV 161.14
RICOH USA, INC RICOH MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT/NOV 46.48

Total For Dept 850.00 OTHER FUNCTIONS 6,089.51

Total For Fund 101 GENERAL FUND 116,857.74

Fund 206 FIRE FUND
Dept 336.00 FIRE DEPARTMENT
LANSING ICE & FUEL CO GASOLINE 9/16-30/2016 750.20
COREY DROLETT WORK BOOTS/DROLETT 125.00
LANSING UNIFORM CO SS SHIRTS 219.90
LANSING UNIFORM CO PANTS 480.00
LANSING UNIFORM CO BELT 25.00
LANSING UNIFORM CO JACKET 100.00
LANSING UNIFORM CO SS SHIRTS 109.95
LANSING UNIFORM CO NAME TAG 10.00
LANSING UNIFORM CO NAME TAG SERVICE BAR 12.00
LANSING UNIFORM CO 1 SS PULLOVER SHIRT 85.90
LANSING UNIFORM CO 1 STATION SHIRT 56.95
LANSING UNIFORM CO BLOUSE COAT 149.95
LANSING UNIFORM CO LS SHIRT 7.50
LANSING UNIFORM CO DRESS SHOES 69.95
LANSING UNIFORM CO BOOTS 149.95
LANSING UNIFORM CO DRESS PANTS 50.00
BANK OF AMERICA OFFICE MAX/LOCKBOX FOR AMBO MEDS 23.49
MERIDIAN MEDICAL TECH CYANOKIT 5G (HYDROXOCOBALAMIN) 2,252.25
BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC MEDICAL SUPPLIES 548.53
LIFEGAS LLC OXYGEN AND OXYGEN TANK RENTAL 365.95
MOORE MEDICAL, LLC MEDICAL SUPPLIES & FUEL SURCHARGE 206.71
MOORE MEDICAL, LLC MEDICAL SUPPLIES 497.00
CALLBACK STAFFING SOLUT CALLBACK STAFFING OCTOBER 74.40
BIO-CARE, INC. MASK FIT TEST 25.00



APPLICATION SPECIALIST KO MONTHLY HARDWARE & SOFTWARE 1,475.00
ACD.NET, INC. ACD FIBER MONTHLY 182.00
METRONET LONG DISTANCE LONG DISTANCE SEPTEMBER 5.46
VERIZON WIRELESS CELLULAR SEPTEMBER 174.52
TDS METROCOM LOCAL SERVICE SEPTEMBER 41.93
CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC 6139 BISHOP 40.71
CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS 6139 BISHOP 23.71
DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP-I.T. WALL MOUNT RACK 152.63
DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP-I.T. RACK 373.99
ADP SCREENING & SELECTION SESUBSCRIPTION/BACKGROUND CHECKS 20.10
BANK OF AMERICA FLAP JACK/AUTO AID EXPANSION MEET 42.64
BANK OF AMERICA CITY LIMITS/CHIEF MEETING 27.38
BANK OF AMERICA LONGHORN/METRO CHIEFS MEETING 14.24
BANK OF AMERICA FLAP JACK/METRO CHIEFS MEETING 17.00
ACE HARDWARE 6 MISC. MDSE. 1.12
LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES STORAGE TOTE/AMBULANCE 1.13
BANK OF AMERICA NFSA/FIRE PREVENTION WEEK MATERIAL 167.45
PROGRESSIVE SURVEILLANCE TE  50% DOWN/SURVELLIANCE SYSTEM/ CSC 2,348.64

Total For Dept 336.00 FIRE DEPARTMENT 11,505.23

Total For Fund 206 FIRE FUND 11,505.23

Fund 207 POLICE FUND
Dept 301.00 POLICE
THRUN LAW FIRM, P.C. LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2,770.00

Total For Dept 301.00 POLICE 2,770.00

Total For Fund 207 POLICE FUND 2,770.00

Fund 211 FIRE EQUIP. & APPARATUS FUND
Dept 339.00 EQUIPMENT & APPARATUS
BANK OF AMERICA UPS/FIRE TURNOUT GEAR MAINT 17.59
MID MICHIGAN EMERGENCY MAG. MOUNT MIC. CLIP/VEHICLE 34.00
CRAIG'S AUTO BODY SHOP BODY WORK FOR 2006 EXPEDITION #577 4,862.90
FRANKIE D'S AUTO & TRUCK LOF & ROTATE TIRES & BRAKE INSPECT 207.00

Total For Dept 339.00 EQUIPMENT & APPARATUS 5,121.49

Total For Fund 211 FIRE EQUIP. & APPARATUS FUND 5,121.49

Fund 225 WATER IMPROVEMENT FUND
Dept 536.00 ADMINISTRATION & CONSTRUCTION
TRI-COUNTY REGIONAL 2016 - 2017 DUES 2,180.00

Total For Dept 536.00 ADMINISTRATION & CONSTRUCTION 2,180.00

Total For Fund 225 WATER IMPROVEMENT FUND 2,180.00

Fund 248 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Dept 728.00 DDA ADMINISTRATION
APPLICATION SPECIALIST KO MONTHLY HARDWARE & SOFTWARE 118.00
ACD.NET, INC. ACD FIBER MONTHLY 42.00
C. HOWARD HAAS AUGUST CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT 75.00
METRONET LONG DISTANCE LONG DISTANCE SEPTEMBER 3.31
TDS METROCOM LOCAL SERVICE SEPTEMBER 127.23

Total For Dept 728.00 DDA ADMINISTRATION 365.54



Dept 729.00 DDA MARKETING & PROMOTION
BANK OF AMERICA HCC DOMAIN NAME RENEWAL 2 YEARS 48.32
BLOHM CREATIVE PARTNERS HOLT HOMETOWN FESTIVAL AD 1,015.25
BLOHM CREATIVE PARTNERS HOMETOWN FESTIVAL THANK YOU AD 769.00
BLOHM CREATIVE PARTNERS HOLTNOW.COM DIGITAL ADS 373.75
BLOHM CREATIVE PARTNERS HOLTNOW.COM CONTENT EMAIL 225.00
BLOHM CREATIVE PARTNERS RAM QTRLY CONVERSION TO ONLINE 6,000.00
BANK OF AMERICA 2 CS MIGHTY MAC CLERANER/SALES TAX & S 140.02
BANK OF AMERICA REFUND SALES TAX/MICHIGAN CO. (7.93)
BANK OF AMERICA 4 YARD SIGNS/SALES TAX & SHIPPING 16.53

Total For Dept 729.00 DDA MARKETING & PROMOTION 8,579.94

Dept 903.05 2016 DDA DEVELOPMENT
THRUN LAW FIRM, P.C. LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 300.00

Total For Dept 903.05 2016 DDA DEVELOPMENT 300.00

Total For Fund 248 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 9,245.48

Fund 590 SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM
Dept 548.00 ADMINISTRATION & OVERHEAD
THRUN LAW FIRM, P.C. LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 916.28
PROGRESSIVE IMPRESSIONS OCT - DEC SEWER BILLS POSTAGE 5,500.00
PROGRESSIVE IMPRESSIONS SEWER BILLS SEPTEMBER 533.54

Total For Dept 548.00 ADMINISTRATION & OVERHEAD 6,949.82

Dept 558.00 DEPT OF PUBLIC SERVICE
LANSING ICE & FUEL CO GASOLINE 9/16-30/2016 1,060.57
MODEL COVERALL SERVICE STAFF UNIFORMS/POTW 68.83
MODEL COVERALL SERVICE STAFF UNIFORMS/MAINTENANCE 52.06
APPLICATION SPECIALIST KO MONTHLY HARDWARE & SOFTWARE 2,613.00
APPLICATION SPECIALIST KO LENOVO THINKPAD YOGA 11E 11.6" 1,114.19
ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE QUARTERLY CHECK SAMPLES 852.26
ALEXANDER CHEMICAL CORP CALCIUM 10,635.28
ALEXANDER CHEMICAL CORP CRE4DIT (360.00)
BANK OF AMERICA SAFETY SHOES/DIORKA 80.95
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC GERNERAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 867.54
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC SAW  SUMMER INTERN WORK SAW GIS 3,798.60
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC SEWER LEAD INSPECTIONS 1,997.25
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION 2,086.89
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC SANITARY SEWER REVIEW PRESTWICK 735.15
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC PRESTWICK VILLAGE APARTMENTS 928.62
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC SAW GRANT ADMINISTRATION 6,393.48
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION 15.60
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC OREILLY AUTO PARTS OBSERVATION 552.00
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC STIMSON DRAIN UTILITY REVIEW CONST 1,645.50
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC WILLOUGHBY ESTATES CONSTRUCTION 1,887.99
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC WILLOUGHBY ESTATES SANITARY SEWER R 1,242.45
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 3440 DUNCKEL RD KLEIN BROTHERS LLC SA 143.40
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC SPARROW HEALTH SYSTEM SEWER REV 186.75
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE SHIPPING CHARGES 46.00
GRANGER STREET SPOILS & DRYING BEDS SLUDGE 350.00
METRONET LONG DISTANCE LONG DISTANCE SEPTEMBER 3.03
ACD.NET, INC. ACD FIBER MONTHLY 560.00
COMCAST HIGH SPEED INTERNET/POTW 144.85
COMCAST HIGH SPEED INTERNET/MAINTENANCE 144.85
TDS METROCOM LOCAL SERVICE SEPTEMBER 388.42



CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC-4000 N MICHIGAN#B 150.21
CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC-5961 MC CUE #2723 44.80
CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC-1988 WAVERLY 547.99
CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS-1988 WAVERLY 27.39
BANK OF AMERICA GRAIN & SALT BLOCK/SHEEP 26.96
SUPERIOR SAW SCAG BELT 30.83
LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES AIR FITTINGS & OIL/POTW DIGESTER 14.17
ACE HARDWARE PAINT BRUSH & 2 PAINT 65.97
BARNHART & SON, INC. PINE TREE RD FORCEMAIN INVESTIGAT 3,944.20
BARNHART & SON, INC. 4000 MICHIGAN RD FORCEMAIN INVEST 2,857.34
BARNHART & SON, INC. SEAL SANITARY MANHOLE GROVENBURG &  301.15
BARNHART & SON, INC. WEDGE MANHOLES AURELIUS & MCCUE 1,129.36
EVOQUA WATER TECHN REPLACE DIVERSION WEIR 5,220.00
RS TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. REPAIR PUMP #11/POTW 738.60
BARNHART & SON, INC. WWTP HYDRANT REPAIR 1,796.69
BOYNTON FIRE SAFETY SERV SPRINKLER INSPECTION/MAINT BLDG. 275.00
BOYNTON FIRE SAFETY SERV FIRE EXTINGUISHER 117.00
BARNHART & SON, INC. WWTP GRADE & SEED FIELD 2,680.95
QUALITY FIRST MAID SERVICE CLEANING SERVICES/MAINTENANCE 260.00
QUALITY FIRST MAID SERVICE CLEANING SERVICES/POTW 260.00
HARPER INDUSTRIAL CONST INSTALL/PAINT INLET WEIR #577 3,167.00
BARNHART & SON, INC. WWTP SLUDGE HAUL 568.05
BANK OF AMERICA LUNCH/RANES 31.07
BANK OF AMERICA MWEA REGISTRATION & MEMBERSHIP/ 200.00
BANK OF AMERICA MWEA MEMBERSHIP/HATHAWAY 70.00
BANK OF AMERICA MWEA REGISTRATION/RANES 130.00
BANK OF AMERICA MWEA MEMBERSHIP/ADAMS 70.00
BANK OF AMERICA ESD MEMBERSHIP/DIORKA 119.00
BANK OF AMERICA ASCE MEMBERSHIP/DIORKA 268.00
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC LUGGAGE/DIORKA 25.00
BANK OF AMERICA MWEA REGISTRATION/LENON & ACKELS 330.00
BANK OF AMERICA MWEA REGISTRATION/DE YOUNG & TRIGO 400.00
BANK OF AMERICA LUNCH/DIORKA 28.02
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC DINNER/DIORKA 34.50
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC DINNER/DIORKA 34.50
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC TAXI SERVICE/DIORKA 41.40
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC BREAKFAST/DIORKA 34.43
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC LODGING/DIORKA 1,500.00
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC BREAKFAST/DIORKA 28.77
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC DINNER/DIORKA 34.50
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC LUGGAGE/DIORKA 25.00
BANK OF AMERICA WEFTEC BREAKFAST/DIORKA 29.10
BANK OF AMERICA LUNCH/LENON 31.07

Total For Dept 558.00 DEPT OF PUBLIC SERVICE 67,923.53

Dept 578.01 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 779.25
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION 135.60

Total For Dept 578.01 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 914.85

Total For Fund 590 SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM 75,788.20



Fund 701 TRUST & AGENCY FUND
Dept 000.00 
AMES ICE CREAM REFUND CASH BOND-TRANSIENT LIC 250.00

Total For Dept 000.00 250.00

Total For Fund 701 TRUST & AGENCY FUND 250.00

Fund 703 CURRENT TAX ACCOUNT
Dept 000.00 
STATE OF MICHIGAN DELHI TWP 2016 SET IFT 18,994.76

Total For Dept 000.00 18,994.76

Total For Fund 703 CURRENT TAX ACCOUNT 18,994.76

Total For All Funds: 242,712.90



C:\Users\tricia.DELHITOWNSHIP\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\960HB0G2\PAYROLL APPROVAL

DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP
FUND TRANSFERS AND PAYROLL APPROVAL

                                                             For Payroll Dated October 6, 2016

I.   Certification of Preparation and Distribution

The Treasurer's & Clerk's signatures were printed on the payroll checks using an electronic image signature

___________________________________
Lora Behnke, Accounting Clerk

Dated: October 6, 2016 Director of Accounting

II.  Payroll Report
The October 6, 2016 payroll encompasses the following funds and  expenditures:

Gross Payroll Net
Payroll Deductions Pay

General Fund $79,383.73 $23,565.35 $55,818.38
Fire Dept. Fund 53,393.78 17,767.20 $35,626.58
DDA 4,122.74 968.93 $3,153.81
Sewer Fund/Receiving 39,275.18 12,374.09 $26,901.09
Total Payroll $176,175.43 $54,675.57 $121,499.86

Township Township RHS & Total Deductions
FICA Pension Plan & TWP Liabilities

General Fund $5,744.41 $7,614.36 $36,924.12
Fire Dept. Fund 3,997.51 4,307.44 26,072.15
DDA 140.20 84.76 1,193.89
Sewer Fund/Receiving 2,897.69 4,182.99 19,454.77
     Total Payroll $12,779.81 $16,189.55 $83,644.93

Director of Accounting

III.  FUND TRANSFERS
Transfers covering the foregoing payroll were made on October 6, 2016 and identified as follows: 

Roy W. Sweet, Treasurer

IV.  Board Audit and Approval:

 
Attachment to Payroll Register

cc: Sweet(1)Vander Ploeg(1) Evan Hope, Clerk

At a regular meeting of the Township Board held on October 18, 2016, a motion was made by _________________and passed 
by_________________yes votes and ________no votes(__________absent) that the payroll dated October 6, 2016 was 
reviewed, audited, and approved.

The attached check and payroll registers encompass check numbers: 109371  through 109394 & direct deposits numbers: 
DD23368 through DD23456.  The payroll was prepared in accordance with established payroll rates and procedures.

10/06 Net Pay Disbursement in Common Savings ($121,499.86)                                  

The attached Check and Payroll Registers were reviewed.  The payroll checks were distributed in accordance with established 
procedures.



DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Delhi Township Board Members 
 
FROM: John B. Elsinga, Township Manager 
 
DATE: October 12, 2016 
 
RE: 2017 Holiday Schedule 
 
      
Attached is a proposed holiday schedule for Delhi Township for the year 2017.  Delhi 
Township observes twelve (12) holidays per year as a paid holiday for full-time 
employees, in which all Township offices are closed to the public.  These holidays are:  
 

1. New Year’s Day   7. Labor Day  
2. Martin Luther King Jr.’s Day  8. Veterans’ Day 
3. President’s Day   9. Thanksgiving Day 
4. Good Friday    10. Friday after Thanksgiving Day 
5. Memorial Day   11. Christmas Eve Day 
6. Independence Day     12. Christmas Day 

 
 
In 2017, Independence Day falls on a Tuesday and it has been suggested, based on 
past practices, that the Township swap the Good Friday holiday for Monday, July 3, 
2017 in addition to Tuesday, July 4, 2017.   
 
This is the only recommended change to the 2017 holiday schedule.  If the Board 
concurs with the proposed schedule, I offer the following motion: 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 
To adopt the 2017 Holiday Schedule for Delhi Charter 
Township (Exhibit A). 



 
Delhi Charter Township 

 
2017 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 

 
 
 
 
New Year’s Day    Monday, January 2, 2017 
 
Martin Luther King Jr.’s Day  Monday, January 16, 2017 
 
President’s Day    Monday, February 20, 2017 
 
Memorial Day     Monday, May 29, 2017 
 
Independence Day    Monday & Tuesday 

July 3 and 4, 2017 
 
Labor Day     Monday, September 4, 2017 
 
Veterans’ Day     Friday, November 10, 2017 
 
Thanksgiving   Thursday & Friday,  

November 23 and 24, 2017 
 
Christmas      Monday & Tuesday   
       December 25 and 26, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Delhi Charter Township  
Department of Community Development 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
MP 
 

TO:  John B. Elsinga, Township Manager 
 
FROM:  Tracy L.C. Miller, Director of Community Development 
 
DATE:  October 11, 2016 
 
RE:  SUP #16-280 – Thompson’s Garage (1375 N. Cedar) 

(33-25-05-25-101-011) 
 
At their meeting on October 10th, the Planning Commission (PC) voted unanimously to 
recommend approval of a Special Use Permit (SUP) for Thompson’s Garage located at 1375 N. 
Cedar.  The requested SUP is pursuant to Sections 5.10.4(1) of the Zoning Ordinance (ZO), 
which permits auto repair and service facilities 
 
The applicant intends to purchase the property and open an auto repair shop.  The attached 
staff report provides significant details about the current proposal.  The SUP, as recommended 
by the PC, includes five conditions that will help to ensure that the intent of the ZO is achieved.  
The PC held a public hearing at the meeting.  There were no members of the public which spoke 
at the hearing. The motion passed by the PC is as follows: 
 
Olsen moved, Goodall seconded, to recommend to the Township Board to the Township Board approval of SUP #16-
280 for automotive repair and service pursuant to Section 5.10.4(1) of the Zoning Ordinance for property located at  
1375 N. Cedar, Mason, MI (Parcel #33-25-05-25-101-011).  The following conditions to apply: 
 

1. This building and site is legally non-conforming pursuant to Section 6.7 of the Zoning Ordinance. Any 
changes to the building or site, including those specifically required as conditions of this SUP, must 
conform to the Zoning Ordinance.  The use of this site for automotive repair and servicing is not legally 
non-conforming. 

 
2. The applicant must submit and receive approval for a site plan pursuant to Section 3.3 of the Zoning 

Ordinance. Specifically, the site plan and all subsequent site improvements must address the following: 
• Secondary containment for all oils, chemicals and other potentially hazardous substances. 
• Sanitary sewage discharge and storm water discharge from the site. 
• Proper parking areas designated for customers and employees. 
• Trash/waste must be placed within a fully enclosed dumpster or be stored inside a fully enclosed 

building.   
• Parking and storage of vehicles waiting to be repaired.  This must occur either: 

i. on a paved area that is completely enclosed by an 8’ high opaque fence. If this option is 
selected, the applicant must ensure that no rainwater runoff leaves the parking area 
unless it is subjected to pre-treatment sufficient to ensure that oil or other contaminants 
are removed, or 

ii. within a fully enclosed building. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
3. There shall be no outdoor display of vehicles for sale on the premises. 
   
4. Operations must comply with all State of Michigan requirements and licensing. 
   
5. Site and business must operate in a manner that is compliant with all Township Ordinances and 

requirements at all times. 
 
The Planning Commission has received the “Basis for Determination for Granting a Special Use Permit” and has 
found that the general and specific standards outlined in Section 8.1.3 have been satisfied and that those findings 
are accurately reflected in the document entitled “Basis for Determination for SUP#16-280” dated October 5, 2016 
and it is fully incorporated into this motion and the official meeting minutes. 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
AYES: Craig, Goodall, Leaf, Lincoln, Olsen, Zietlow 
NAYS: None. 
ABSENT: O’Hara, Berry-Smokoski, Harmon 
MOTION PASSED. 

 
 
If you have any additional questions or need more information, please do not hesitate to ask.  
Otherwise, please forward this information, along with your concurrence, to the Township 
Board for their consideration and action at the upcoming October 18th meeting.  Thank you in 
advance for your time and attention to this matter.  
 
Recommended Motion to APPROVE: 
 
To adopt Special Use Permit No. 14-280 for Thompson’s Garage, 1375 N. 
Cedar, Mason, MI, Tax Parcel# 33-25-05-25-101-011, to permit an auto repair 
and servicing facility, as recommended by the Planning Commission at their 
October 10, 2016 meeting. 
 
 

-OR- 
 
 
Recommended Motion to DENY: 
 
To deny Special Use Permit No. 14-280 for Thompson’s Garage, 1375 N. 
Cedar, Mason, MI, Tax Parcel# 33-25-05-25-101-011. 



1 
 

DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT NO. 16-280 

 
APPLICANT:   
 

THOMPSON’S GARAGE, LLC 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT ADDRESS:   1375 N. CEDAR, MASON, MI 
33-25-05-25-101-011 
 

DATE ADOPTED:   
 

OCTOBER 18, 2016 

PURPOSE: PERMIT AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR AND SERVICE IN THE C-2: 
GENERAL BUSINESS ZONING DISTRICT PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 5.10.4(1) OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 

CONDITIONS:  
   

1. This building and site is legally non-conforming pursuant to Section 6.7 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. Any changes to the building or site, including those specifically required as 
conditions of this SUP, must conform to the Zoning Ordinance.  The use of this site for 
automotive repair and servicing is not legally non-conforming. 

 
2. The applicant must submit and receive approval for a site plan pursuant to Section 3.3 of 

the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the site plan and all subsequent site improvements 
must address the following: 

• Secondary containment for all oils, chemicals and other potentially hazardous 
substances. 

• Sanitary sewage discharge and storm water discharge from the site. 
• Proper parking areas designated for customers and employees. 
• Trash/waste must be placed within a fully enclosed dumpster or be stored inside 

a fully enclosed building.   
• Parking and storage of vehicles waiting to be repaired.  This must occur either: 

i. on a paved area that is completely enclosed by an 8’ high opaque fence. If 
this option is selected, the applicant must ensure that no rainwater runoff 
leaves the parking area unless it is subjected to pre-treatment sufficient to 
ensure that oil or other contaminants are removed, or 

ii. within a fully enclosed building. 
 
3. There shall be no outdoor display of vehicles for sale on the premises. 
   
4. Operations must comply with all State of Michigan requirements and licensing. 
   
5. Site and business must operate in a manner that is compliant with all Township 

Ordinances and requirements at all times. 
 



2 
 

BASIS OF DETERMINATION:  Pursuant to the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Act 110 of 2006, as 
amended, Section 125.3504 (4), conditions imposed by this Special Use Permit are: 
 
(1) Reasonable conditions may be required with the approval of a special land use, planned unit 
development, or other land uses or activities permitted by discretionary decision. The conditions 
may include conditions necessary to insure that public services and facilities affected by a 
proposed land use or activity will be capable of accommodating increased service and facility loads 
caused by the land use or activity, to protect the natural environment and conserve natural 
resources and energy, to insure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, and to promote the use 
of land in a socially and economically desirable manner. Conditions imposed meet all of the 
following requirements: 
 

(a) Are designed to protect natural resources, the health, safety, and welfare, as well as 
the social and economic well-being, of those who will use the land use or activity under 
consideration, residents and landowners immediately adjacent to the proposed land use 
or activity, and the community as a whole, and 
 
(b) Are related to the valid exercise of the police power and purposes which are affected 
by the proposed use or activity, and 
 
(c) Are necessary to meet the intent and purpose of the zoning requirements, are related 
to the standards established in the Zoning Ordinance for the land use or activity under 
consideration, and are necessary to insure compliance with those standards, and 

 
(2) The conditions imposed with respect to the approval of a land use or activity is recorded in the 
record of the approval action and remain unchanged except upon the mutual consent of the 
approving authority and the landowner. 
 
The foregoing Special Use Permit declared adopted on date written above. 
 

__________________________ 
  Evan Hope, Township Clerk 
STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
       )ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Delhi, Ingham 
County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the 
proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on the 18th day of October, 
2016. 

 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this _____ day of 

October, 2016.        
 

     __________________________ 



3 
 

 Evan Hope, Township Clerk 
 
In most cases, Special Use Permits shall be assignable from one party to another, provided, however, that the site, 
location, and any other restrictions placed on the original Special Use Permit do not change.  Assignability of said permit 
shall be subject to the following requirements and conditions: 
 

1. Prior to reassignment of the Special Use Permit to any owner, lessee occupant, or operator, the current permit 
holder shall notify the Delhi Township Zoning Administrator of his/her intention to assign the permit to a third 
party. 
 

2. The assignee of the permit shall complete the appropriate application for continued use of the permitted 
operation. 
 

3. The assignee of the permit shall meet with the Zoning Administrator in an effort to become familiar with all 
existing requirements of the Special Use Permit.  Unless provided elsewhere in Zoning Ordinance No. 39, the 
new assignee must comply with all Special Use Permit requirements of the current permit holder. 

 
Approved uses, except seasonal uses, which cease for a period of 180 days are hereby considered abandoned and any 
such abandonment shall render the Special Use Permit null and void.  Seasonal uses which cease for a period of one (1) 
year must meet the requirements of Zoning Ordinance No. 39 and will require a new Special Use Permit as required in 
Section 8.1 of the Ordinance.  Seasonal uses shall be defined as uses that require or are affected or caused by certain 
weather availability. 



PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT   
SPECIAL USE PERMIT #16-280, 1375 N. Cedar 
October 5, 2016    
              Tracy LC Miller, Director 
                       Community Development Department 
 
PROPOSED USE:   
The applicant has requested a Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow the service and repair of motor 
vehicles within the C-2: General Business zoning district pursuant to Section 5.10.4(1) of the Zoning 
Ordinance (ZO).  
 
DESCRIPTION: 
The applicant for this case is Mr. Eric Thompson (Thompson’s Garage LLC).  According to 
information submitted with the application materials, Mr. Thompson has a purchase agreement 
with the property owner (Gillmore Properties LLC).  The applicant intends to operate an auto 
repair facility at the subject location.   
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
There are a number of issues that arise while evaluating this type of a land use.  Below is an 
evaluation of the basic ordinance compliance issues and other possible considerations: 
 

 
1. The site is approximately ½ acre in size and has a few buildings on it that have legal non-

conforming status.  Figure 1 shows the site. 
   

2. The applicant states that he does not plan to make any significant changes to the buildings or 
site, but that he intends to make aesthetic changes to improve the appearance of the property. 
 These types of changes can be done without changing the legal non-conforming status.  
However, any additions or physical modifications to the buildings will be required to conform 
to the current Zoning Ordinance.  While this status does not pose an immediate problem, the 
applicant must be aware of this status and understand the potential limitations it creates for 
the site.  Legal non-conforming uses are addressed by Section 6.7 of the ZO.  A copy of that 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 2  Auto Repair & Service 

section is included as “Appendix A” of this staff report. 
   

3. The applicant will need to 
submit a site plan pursuant 
to Section 3.3 of the ZO prior 
to occupying the facility.  
The plan will need to 
address buffer and 
landscaping requirements, 
parking, fencing, storm 
water runoff and secondary 
containment.  Secondary 
containment for all oils, 
chemicals, cleaners, etc. 
must be provided.  The ZO 
requires that a site plan be 
submitted with an SUP 
application.  The complexity 
of the site plan is usually 
related to the proposed use 
and scale of the proposed 
use or development.  In this 
case, there is an existing 
building and site that will 
need some improvements in 
order to protect the 
environment and achieve 
the intent of the ZO.   
   

4. There is no information presented regarding how and where vehicles that are awaiting repair 
will be stored on the property.  Consistent with past practice and the Zoning Ordinance, this 
will need to occur in an area that is completely enclosed with an opaque fence and that has a 
paved surface to catch anything that drips from the vehicles.  Alternately, vehicles must be 
stored inside a completely enclosed building.   This SUP does not authorize the display of any 
vehicles for sale on the property. 
   

5. Figures 2 and 3 show a Google Streetview of the subject site.    
   

6. There have been 3 previous applications for an auto repair/body work SUP for this site.  The 
first was in 1985 and was approved with conditions, but the applicant did not move forward 
with the project and so the SUP became void.   
 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 3  Auto Repair & Service 

The second was in 1998.  That SUP application was denied because the PC at that time did not 
feel that an auto-repair facility was consistent with the Cedar Street Corridor Plan and that the 
site could not conform to the ZO.  A copy of those meeting minutes is attached as Appendix B.   
 
The last SUP application was submitted in 2000 and was approved by the PC. The approval 
included the condition that the applicant must submit and receive approval of a site plan 
pursuant to Section 3.3 of the ZO.  This never occurred and so the SUP became void. 
 
Staff ultimately suggests that the PC require the same at this time, if the SUP is approved.  
Additional conditions that specifically address the issues raised above should also be included.   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested SUP 16-280 to permit an auto service and repair 
facility in the C-2: General Business district with the following conditions: 
 
1. This building and site is legally non-conforming pursuant to Section 6.7 of the Zoning 

Ordinance. Any changes to the building or site, including those specifically required as 
conditions of this SUP, must conform to the Zoning Ordinance.  The use of this site for 
automotive repair and servicing is not legally non-conforming. 
 

2. The applicant must submit and receive approval for a site plan pursuant to Section 3.3 of the 
Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the site plan and all subsequent site improvements must 
address the following: 
a. Secondary containment for all oils, chemicals and other potentially hazardous substances. 
b. Sanitary sewage discharge and storm water discharge from the site. 
c. Proper parking areas designated for customers and employees. 
d. Trash/waste must be placed within a fully enclosed dumpster or be stored inside a fully 

enclosed building.   
e. Parking and storage of vehicles waiting to be repaired.  This must occur either: 

i. on a paved area that is completely enclosed by an 8’ high opaque fence. If this option is 
selected, the applicant must ensure that no rainwater runoff leaves the parking area 
unless it is subjected to pre-treatment sufficient to ensure that oil or other 
contaminants are removed, or 

ii. within a fully enclosed building. 
 

3. There shall be no outdoor display of vehicles for sale on the premises. 
   

4. Operations must comply with all State of Michigan requirements and licensing. 
   

5. Site and business must operate in a manner that is compliant with all Township Ordinances 
and requirements at all times. 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 4  Auto Repair & Service 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION TO APPROVE 
Move to recommend to the Township Board approval of SUP #16-280 for automotive repair and 
service pursuant to Section 5.10.4(1) of the Zoning Ordinance for property located at  1375 N. 
Cedar, Mason, MI (Parcel #33-25-05-25-101-011).  The following conditions to apply: 
 

1. This building and site is legally non-conforming pursuant to Section 6.7 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. Any changes to the building or site, including those specifically required as 
conditions of this SUP, must conform to the Zoning Ordinance.  The use of this site for 
automotive repair and servicing is not legally non-conforming. 

 
2. The applicant must submit and receive approval for a site plan pursuant to Section 3.3 of 

the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the site plan and all subsequent site improvements 
must address the following: 

• Secondary containment for all oils, chemicals and other potentially hazardous 
substances. 

• Sanitary sewage discharge and storm water discharge from the site. 
• Proper parking areas designated for customers and employees. 
• Trash/waste must be placed within a fully enclosed dumpster or be stored inside 

a fully enclosed building.   
• Parking and storage of vehicles waiting to be repaired.  This must occur either: 

i. on a paved area that is completely enclosed by an 8’ high opaque fence. If 
this option is selected, the applicant must ensure that no rainwater runoff 
leaves the parking area unless it is subjected to pre-treatment sufficient to 
ensure that oil or other contaminants are removed, or 

ii. within a fully enclosed building. 
 
3. There shall be no outdoor display of vehicles for sale on the premises. 
   
4. Operations must comply with all State of Michigan requirements and licensing. 
   
5. Site and business must operate in a manner that is compliant with all Township 

Ordinances and requirements at all times. 
 

6. LIST ANY CONDITIONS ADDED BY PLANNING COMMISSION HERE, OTHERWISE OMIT 
FROM MOTION. 

 
The Planning Commission has received the “Basis for Determination for Granting a Special Use 
Permit” and has found that the general and specific standards outlined in Section 8.1.3 have 
been satisfied and that those findings are accurately reflected in the document entitled “Basis 
for Determination for SUP#16-280” dated October 5, 2016 and it is fully incorporated into this 
motion and the official meeting minutes. 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 5  Auto Repair & Service 
 
MOTION TO DENY 
Move to recommend to the Township Board denial of SUP #16-280 for an automotive repair and 
service facility in the C-2: General Business district because the proposal does not comply with the 
required Basis for Determination Subsection ___________ (MUST FILL IN SPECIFIC CITATION). 
  
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
APPLICANT:  Eric Thompson 
  Thompson’s Garage LLC 
 
OWNER OF RECORD: Gilmore Properties LLC 
  25195 Pine Nut Lane 
  Brooksville, FL  34601-7005 
 
LOCATION:  1375 N. Cedar Street 
     
PARCEL I.D. NO.: 33-25-05-25-101-0011 
 
ZONING:  C-2: General Business 
 
REQUESTED ACTIVITY: Auto Service & Repair 
 
PROPERTY SIZE: ½ acre (+/-) 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: vacant 
 
ADJACENT LAND USE:  North:  Contractor’s Office 

South:  Personal Residence (fronts on Edgar Road) 
East:  Total Firearms 
West:  Undetermined Commercial Structure (?) 

 
ADJACENT ZONING:  North:  A-1: Agricultural 
    South:  C-2: General Business 
    East:  C-2: General Business  
    West:  C-2: General Business  
 
MASTER PLAN OF DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP: 
The 2002-2020 Master Plan of Delhi Charter Township (MP) shows the subject property as planned 
for continued commercial land uses on the Future Land Use Map.  
 
 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 6  Auto Repair & Service 
CONFORMANCE WITH SECTION 8.1.3: 
Prior to action on any SUP application, the Planning Commission shall establish that the general 
and specific standards and requirements contained in section 8.1.3 have been satisfied.  The 
Planning Commission must review “Basis for Determination for SUP#16-280” dated October 5, 
2016 (attached) and make a determination regarding compliance with each finding.  



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 7  Auto Repair & Service 

Appendix A: Zoning Ordinance Section 6.7 - Nonconformities 
 

6.7.1 Intent and purpose. 

Further, it is the intent of this Ordinance that nonconformities shall not be enlarged upon, expanded or 
extended, nor be used as grounds for adding other structures or uses prohibited elsewhere in the same 
districts. The continuance of all nonconforming uses and structures within Delhi Charter Township shall be 
subject to the conditions and requirements set forth in this section. 

It is the intent of this Ordinance to permit the continuance of a lawful use of any 
building or land existing at the effective date of this Ordinance, although such use of land or structure may 
not conform with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

6.7.2 Structural changes or enlargement. The building or land use that is nonconforming shall not be 
structurally changed, altered or enlarged unless the resultant changed, altered or enlarged building or use 
conforms to the provisions of this Ordinance for the district in which it is located. 

6.7.3 Repair of nonconforming buildings. Nothing in this Ordinance shall prohibit the repair, improvement 
or modernization of a lawful nonconforming building to correct deterioration, obsolescence, depreciation 
and wear. 

6.7.4 Reconstruction and restoration. Any lawful nonconforming use damaged by fire, explosion, an act of 
God or by other causes may be restored, rebuilt or repaired, provided that the damage does not exceed 
more than eighty-five (85) percent of the real valuation of the building, exclusive of land and foundation, 
and provided that said use be the same or more nearly conforming with the provisions of the district in 
which it is located. 

6.7.5 Discontinuance or abandonment. When any legal nonconforming use has been discontinued for the 
continuous period of one (1) year or for eighteen (18) months during any three-year period, such 
discontinuation shall be considered conclusive evidence of an intention to legally abandon the 
nonconforming use. At the end of this period of abandonment, the nonconforming use shall not be re-
established, and any future use shall be in conformity with the provisions of this Ordinance. Prior to 
termination of a nonconforming use due to abandonment or discontinuation, the township shall provide 
written notice of its intent to terminate such nonconforming use to the property owner identified in the 
township's most recent property tax rolls, by personal delivery or by first class mail. Said notice shall 
provide the date, time and place where and when a public hearing will be held on the question of such 
abandonment or discontinuance. The public hearing shall be conducted by the township board with a final 
determination made by the same. 

6.7.6 Changing uses. If no structural alterations are made, the board of appeals may authorize a change 
from one (1) nonconforming use to another nonconforming use, provided the proposed use would be 
more suitable to the zoning district in which it is located than the nonconforming use which is being 
replaced. Whenever a nonconforming use has been changed to a more nearly conforming use or to a 
conforming use, such use shall not revert use or be changed back to a nonconforming or less conforming 
use. 

6.7.7 Prior construction approval. Nothing in this Ordinance shall prohibit the completion of construction 
and use of a nonconforming building for which a building permit has been issued prior to the effective date 
of this Ordinance, provided that construction is commenced within sixty (60) days after the date of 
issuance of the permit and that the entire building shall have been completed according to plans filed with 
the permit application within one (1) year after the issuance of the building permit. 

6.7.8 Termination of nonconforming land uses. The nonconforming uses of land existing at the effective 
date of this Ordinance where no building is located may be continued, provided that the nonconforming 
land use shall be terminated and converted to conform with the provisions of the current Zoning 
Ordinance within three (3) years after the effective date of this Ordinance; and provided further that the 
nonconforming land use shall not in any way be expanded or extended during this three-year interval, 
either on the same property or adjoining property. 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 8  Auto Repair & Service 
6.7.9 Illegal nonconforming uses. 

6.7.10

Nonconforming uses of buildings or land existing at the effective date of 
this Ordinance established without a building permit or not shown on the tax records as a nonconforming 
use prior to the last official assessment roll, or those nonconforming uses which cannot be approved 
conclusively as existing prior to the effective date of this Ordinance, shall be declared illegal 
nonconforming uses and shall be discontinued within a period of three (3) years following the effective 
date of this Ordinance. 

 District changes. 

 

Whenever the boundaries of a district shall be changed so as to transfer an area 
from one (1) district to another classification, the provisions of this section shall also apply to any existing 
uses that become nonconforming as a result of the boundary changes. 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 9  Auto Repair & Service 

 

Appendix B: October 13, 1998 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 10  Auto Repair & Service 

Section 8.1.3 Basis for Determination  
SUP #16-280 – 1375 N. Cedar, Mason, MI 

 
Section 8.1.3(1)(a) Be harmonious and in accordance with the general principals and 
proposals of the Master Plan. 
 
The Future Land Use Map calls for this property to continue to be developed and used for 
commercial purposes.  As the property currently exists, it is not consistent with the overall 
objectives in terms of promoting economic development and encouraging nonconformities to 
come into compliance or be mitigated. However, if the conditions placed on the approval are 
implemented by the applicant, the site would achieve those goals. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(b) Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be 
harmonious in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and 
that such a use will not change the essential character of the area in which it is proposed. 
 
The conditions placed on the SUP should help to ensure that the automotive service and repair 
facility is operated in a manner that is harmonious with the appearance of surrounding areas 
and the character of properties in the vicinity.  
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(c) Not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future uses in the same 
general vicinity and will be a substantial improvement to the property in the immediate 
vicinity and to the community as a whole. 
 
The inclusion of conditions on the approved SUP is expected to mitigate any potential negative 
impacts that could occur. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(d) Be served adequately by essential public services, such as highways, 
streets, police, fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewage 
facilities, or schools. 
 
The property is connected to public sanitary sewer, but not public water.  The property has 
frontage directly on Cedar.  It is very likely that storm water and/or sanitary sewer 
improvements (pre-treatment, sand/oil separators, etc.) will be required during site plan review. 
 The conditions included in the SUP should address any concerns. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(e) Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials and equipment or 
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any person, property or general welfare 
by reason of excess production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 
 
See 8.1.3(1)(c) above. 
 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 11  Auto Repair & Service 
Section 8.1.3(1)(f) be consistent with the intent and purposes of the zoning district in which it 
is proposed to locate such use. 
 
The C-2: General Business district permits auto repair and service facilities with an approved 
SUP. The purpose of the SUP is to ensure that conditions can be placed on the specific use to 
address unique site or building conditions. The conditions recommended for this SUP should 
ensure that the intent and purpose of the C-2 district are achieved. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(g) Be designed to protect natural resources, the health, safety, welfare, and 
social and economic well-being of those who will use the land use or activity, and the 
community as a whole. 
 
Provided the SUP conditions are complied with no negative impacts to the health, safety, 
welfare, etc. as outlined in 8.1.3(1)(g) above are anticipated to occur.  
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(h) Be related to the valid exercise of the police power and purposes which 
are affected by imposed use of activity. 
 
The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act provides the Township with the ability to require Special Use 
Permits for those uses that have the possibility of creating unacceptable or difficult 
circumstances for the community.  As such the requirement that the proposed contractor’s 
office receive an approved SUP is a valid exercise of police power. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(i) Be necessary to meet the intent and purpose of the zoning ordinance, be 
related to the standards established in the ordinance for the land use or activity under 
consideration, and be necessary to insure compliance with those standards. 
 
See 8.1.3(1)(h) above. 
 
Section 8.1.3(2) Conditions and Safeguards: The Planning Commission may impose such 
additional conditions and safeguards deemed necessary for the general welfare, for the 
protection of individual property rights and for insuring that the intent and objectives of this 
Ordinance will be observed.  The breach of any condition, safeguard, or requirement shall 
automatically invalidate the permit granted. 
 
See 8.1.3(1)(g) above.  
 
Section 8.1.3(3) Specific Requirements: The general standards and requirements of the 
Section are basic to all uses authorized by Special Use Permit.  The specific and detailed 
requirements set forth in the following Sections relate to particular uses and are 
requirements which must be met by those uses in addition to the foregoing general 
standards and requirements where applicable. 



SUP #16-280 1375 N. Cedar 
Page 12  Auto Repair & Service 
 
See 8.1.3(2) above. 
 
Date:  October 5, 2016 















Delhi Charter Township  
Department of Community Development 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
MP 
 

TO:  John B. Elsinga, Township Manager 
 
FROM:  Tracy L.C. Miller, Director of Community Development 
 
DATE:  October 11, 2016 
 
RE:  SUP #16-281 – Ray’s Driveway Sealing – 5822 Harper Road 
  (33-25-05-29-300-030) 
 
At their meeting on October 10th, the Planning Commission (PC) voted unanimously to 
recommend approval of a Special Use Permit (SUP) for Ray’s Driveway Sealing located at 5822 
Harper Road.  The use is a “Contractor’s office” in the A-1: Agricultural zoning district and is 
permitted by SUP pursuant to Section 5.21.4(19) of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The applicant owns, and lives at, the subject site and also runs his asphalt sealing business from 
the location.  The staff report for this request provides additional details.  Issuance of the SUP, 
as recommended by the PC, includes five conditions that will help to ensure that the intent of 
the ZO is achieved.  The PC held a public hearing at the meeting.  There were no members of 
the public who spoke. The motion passed by the PC is as follows: 
 
Craig moved, Goodall seconded to recommend to the Township Board approval of SUP #16-281 for a Contractor’s 
Office in the A-1: Agricultural Zoning District pursuant to Section 5.21.4(19) of the Zoning Ordinance for property 
located at  5822 Harper Road (Parcel #33-25-05-29-300-030).  The following conditions to apply: 
 

1. No retail sales activity is permitted, pursuant to Section 5.21.4(19). 
 

2. All equipment and materials must be kept inside an enclosed building.    
 

3. Only passenger vehicles and trucks licensed for over the road use are permitted to be parked outside.  The 
parking of semi-trailers, panel trucks or similar is not permitted.  All parking shall only occur on hard 
surfaced/gravel areas and comply with the requirements of Section 7.1.13 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
   

4. All waste materials must be properly and legally disposed of and may not be stockpiled or otherwise kept 
on the property. 
   

5. Equipment shall not be washed or cleaned out on the property. 
 

The Planning Commission has received the “Basis for Determination for Granting a Special Use Permit” and has 
found that the general and specific standards outlined in Section 8.1.3 have been satisfied and that those 
findings are accurately reflected in the document entitled “Basis for Determination for SUP#16-281” dated 
October 4, 2016 and it is fully incorporated into this motion and the official meeting minutes. 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
AYES: Craig, Goodall, Leaf, Lincoln, Olsen, Zietlow 
NAYS: None. 
ABSENT: O’Hara, Berry-Smokoski, Harmon 
MOTION PASSED. 

 
If you have any additional questions or need more information, please do not hesitate to ask.  
Otherwise, please forward this information, along with your concurrence, to the Township 
Board for their consideration and action at the upcoming October 18th meeting.  Thank you in 
advance for your time and attention to this matter.  
 
Recommended Motion to APPROVE: 
 
To adopt Special Use Permit No. 16-281 for Ray’s Driveway Sealing, 5822 
Harper Road, Holt, MI, Tax Parcel# 33-25-05-29-300-030, to permit a 
Contractor’s Office, as recommended by the Planning Commission at their 
October 10, 2016 meeting. 
 
 

-OR- 
 
 
Recommended Motion to DENY: 
 
To deny Special Use Permit No. 16-281 for Ray’s Driveway Sealing, 5822 
Harper Road, Holt, MI, Tax Parcel# 33-25-05-29-300-030. 



1 
 

DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT NO. 16-281 

 
APPLICANT:   
 

RAY’S DRIVEWAY SEALING 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT ADDRESS:   5822 HARPER ROAD, HOLT, MI 
33-25-05-29-300-030 
 

DATE ADOPTED:   
 

OCTOBER 18, 2016 

PURPOSE: PERMIT A CONTRACTOR’S OFFICE IN THE A-1: AGRICULTURAL 
ZONING DISTRICT PURSUANT TO SECTION 5.21.4(19) OF THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE 

CONDITIONS:  
   

1. No retail sales activity is permitted, pursuant to Section 5.21.4(19). 
 

2. All equipment and materials must be kept inside an enclosed building.    
 

3. Only passenger vehicles and trucks licensed for over the road use are permitted to be 
parked outside.  The parking of semi-trailers, panel trucks or similar is not permitted.  All 
parking shall only occur on hard surfaced/gravel areas and comply with the requirements 
of Section 7.1.13 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
   

4. All waste materials must be properly and legally disposed of and may not be stockpiled 
or otherwise kept on the property. 
   

5. Equipment shall not be washed or cleaned out on the property. 
 
BASIS OF DETERMINATION:  Pursuant to the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Act 110 of 2006, as 
amended, Section 125.3504 (4), conditions imposed by this Special Use Permit are: 
 
(1) Reasonable conditions may be required with the approval of a special land use, planned unit 
development, or other land uses or activities permitted by discretionary decision. The conditions 
may include conditions necessary to insure that public services and facilities affected by a 
proposed land use or activity will be capable of accommodating increased service and facility loads 
caused by the land use or activity, to protect the natural environment and conserve natural 
resources and energy, to insure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, and to promote the use 
of land in a socially and economically desirable manner. Conditions imposed meet all of the 
following requirements: 
 

(a) Are designed to protect natural resources, the health, safety, and welfare, as well as 
the social and economic well-being, of those who will use the land use or activity under 



2 
 

consideration, residents and landowners immediately adjacent to the proposed land use 
or activity, and the community as a whole, and 
 
(b) Are related to the valid exercise of the police power and purposes which are affected 
by the proposed use or activity, and 
 
(c) Are necessary to meet the intent and purpose of the zoning requirements, are related 
to the standards established in the Zoning Ordinance for the land use or activity under 
consideration, and are necessary to insure compliance with those standards, and 

 
(2) The conditions imposed with respect to the approval of a land use or activity is recorded in the 
record of the approval action and remain unchanged except upon the mutual consent of the 
approving authority and the landowner. 
 
The foregoing Special Use Permit declared adopted on date written above. 
 

__________________________ 
  Evan Hope, Township Clerk 
STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
       )ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Delhi, Ingham 
County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the 
proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on the 18th day of October, 
2016. 

 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this _____ day of 

October, 2016.        
 

     __________________________ 
 Evan Hope, Township Clerk 
 
In most cases, Special Use Permits shall be assignable from one party to another, provided, however, that the site, 
location, and any other restrictions placed on the original Special Use Permit do not change.  Assignability of said permit 
shall be subject to the following requirements and conditions: 
 

1. Prior to reassignment of the Special Use Permit to any owner, lessee occupant, or operator, the current permit 
holder shall notify the Delhi Township Zoning Administrator of his/her intention to assign the permit to a third 
party. 
 

2. The assignee of the permit shall complete the appropriate application for continued use of the permitted 
operation. 
 

3. The assignee of the permit shall meet with the Zoning Administrator in an effort to become familiar with all 
existing requirements of the Special Use Permit.  Unless provided elsewhere in Zoning Ordinance No. 39, the 
new assignee must comply with all Special Use Permit requirements of the current permit holder. 

 



3 
 

Approved uses, except seasonal uses, which cease for a period of 180 days are hereby considered abandoned and any 
such abandonment shall render the Special Use Permit null and void.  Seasonal uses which cease for a period of one (1) 
year must meet the requirements of Zoning Ordinance No. 39 and will require a new Special Use Permit as required in 
Section 8.1 of the Ordinance.  Seasonal uses shall be defined as uses that require or are affected or caused by certain 
weather availability. 



PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT   
SPECIAL USE PERMIT #16-281, 5822 Harper Road 
October 4, 2016    
              Tracy LC Miller, Director 
                       Community Development Department 
 
PROPOSED USE:   
The applicant has requested a Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow the operation of a Contractor’s 
Office within the A-1: Agricultural zoning district pursuant to Section 5.21.4(19) of the Zoning 
Ordinance (ZO).  This section reads as follows:  Contractor’s Offices: Provided there is no retail 
business on the site and equipment is kept within a building. 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
The applicant for this case is Mr. Raymond Bollis who is the owner of Ray’s Driveway Sealing.  Mr. 
Bollis asserts that he has been running his driveway sealing business from his home, located at 
5822 Harper Road, for approximately 10 years.  In August Delhi Township Code Enforcement staff 
received a complaint regarding the condition of the property and the fact that there were many 
vehicles and equipment being stored on the property and outside of a building.  Investigation of 
the complaint revealed that these conditions did exist and were the result of the applicant’s 
business.  Contact was made with the applicant, who has submitting this SUP request as a result 
and in an effort to become complaint with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
There are a number of issues that arise while evaluating this type of a land use.  Below is an 
evaluation of the basic ordinance compliance issues and other possible considerations: 
 

1. The ZO requires that any equipment and supplies be kept within a fully enclosed building 
and that there be no retail activity at the site.  The applicant has stated that there is no 
retail component and that all work is completed off-site at specific customer locations.  
However, there are some pieces of equipment that is currently being stored outside.  There 
are two storage structures on the 
property.  One is a fully enclosed 
building, while the other is a partially 
enclosed metal structure which is open 
on the front.  Figures 1 & 2 clearly 
depict these buildings and the 
miscellaneous equipment which is on 
the property and associated with the 
contractor’s office.  Of course, any 
vehicle licensed for on-road use is not 
considered equipment.  The pontoon 
boat is also not considered business 
equipment. 
 



SUP #16-281 5822 Harper Road 
Page 2  Contractor’s Office 

   
2. The partially enclosed building does not 

have a wall/door facing the street.  The 
intent of the ZO is to prevent 
unauthorized access to equipment, but 
also to ensure that the use does not 
become an aesthetic concern.  Further, 
requiring equipment to be kept indoors 
helps to prevent rain water from 
running off of the equipment, which 
minimizes the potential that oils or 
other chemicals would be washed off 
and into the soils or ground/surface 
waters.  
   

3. Figure 3 shows the home 
from Google Streetview 
(2011), but does not show 
the storage structures. 
Review of our historical air 
photos suggests that the 
storage buildings appear to 
have been constructed 
sometime between 2011 and 
present day, but no building 
permits were obtained 
(>200SF is required).  
   

4. Figure 4 shows the subject 
property and an air photo that was 
taken in 2015.  The adjacent 
properties are developed for and 
used for residential purposes, but 
are also zoned A-1: Agricultural.   
There is not public sewer or water 
nearby so homes are served by 
wells and on-site septic systems.  
There is a large wetland area 
located to the north of the subject 
property.  The site is only 
approximately 1 acre in size. 
 



SUP #16-281 5822 Harper Road 
Page 3  Contractor’s Office 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested SUP 16-281 to permit the operation of a Contractor’s 
Office in the A-1: Agricultural zoning district with the following conditions: 
 

1. No retail sales activity is permitted, pursuant to Section 5.21.4(19). 
 

2. All equipment and materials must be kept inside an enclosed building.    
 

3. Only passenger vehicles and trucks licensed for over the road use are permitted to be 
parked outside.  The parking of semi-trailers, panel trucks or similar is not permitted.  All 
parking shall only occur on hard surfaced/gravel areas and comply with the requirements 
of Section 7.1.13 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
   

4. All waste materials must be properly and legally disposed of and may not be stockpiled or 
otherwise kept on the property. 
   

5. Equipment shall not be washed or cleaned out on the property. 
   

RECOMMENDED MOTION TO APPROVE 
Move to recommend to the Township Board approval of SUP #16-281 for a Contractor’s Office in 
the A-1: Agricultural Zoning District pursuant to Section 5.21.4(19) of the Zoning Ordinance for 
property located at  5822 Harper Road (Parcel #33-25-05-29-300-030).  The following conditions 
to apply: 
 

1. No retail sales activity is permitted, pursuant to Section 5.21.4(19). 
 

2. All equipment and materials must be kept inside an enclosed building.    
 

3. Only passenger vehicles and trucks licensed for over the road use are permitted to be 
parked outside.  The parking of semi-trailers, panel trucks or similar is not permitted.  All 
parking shall only occur on hard surfaced/gravel areas and comply with the requirements 
of Section 7.1.13 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
   

4. All waste materials must be properly and legally disposed of and may not be stockpiled 
or otherwise kept on the property. 
   

5. Equipment shall not be washed or cleaned out on the property. 
  

6. LIST ANY CONDITIONS ADDED BY PLANNING COMMISSION HERE, OTHERWISE OMIT 
FROM MOTION. 



SUP #16-281 5822 Harper Road 
Page 4  Contractor’s Office 
 
The Planning Commission has received the “Basis for Determination for Granting a Special Use 
Permit” and has found that the general and specific standards outlined in Section 8.1.3 have 
been satisfied and that those findings are accurately reflected in the document entitled “Basis 
for Determination for SUP#16-281” dated October 4, 2016 and it is fully incorporated into this 
motion and the official meeting minutes. 
 
MOTION TO DENY 
Move to recommend to the Township Board denial of SUP #16-281 for a Contractor’s Office in the 
A-1: Agricultural district because the proposal does not comply with the required Basis for 
Determination Subsection ___________ (MUST FILL IN SPECIFIC CITATION). 
  
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
APPLICANT:  Raymond Bollis 
 
OWNER OF RECORD: Same as Applicant 
 
LOCATION:  5822 Harper Road 
     
PARCEL I.D. NO.: 33-25-05-29-300-030 
 
ZONING:  A-1: Agricultural 
 
REQUESTED ACTIVITY: Contractor’s Office 
 
PROPERTY SIZE: 1 +/- acre 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: Residential Home 
 
ADJACENT LAND USE:  North:  Vacant Wetlands 

South:  Existing Homes 
East:  Existing Home 
West:  Existing Home 

 
ADJACENT ZONING:  North:  A-1: Agricultural 
    South:  A-1: Agricultural 
    East:  A-1: Agricultural 
    West:  A-1: Agricultural  
 
 
 



SUP #16-281 5822 Harper Road 
Page 5  Contractor’s Office 
MASTER PLAN OF DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP: 
The 2002-2020 Master Plan of Delhi Charter Township (MP) shows the subject property as planned 
for Office land uses on the Future Land Use Map. The contractor’s office land use is consistent with 
this anticipated development pattern. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH SECTION 8.1.3: 
Prior to action on any SUP application, the Planning Commission shall establish that the general 
and specific standards and requirements contained in section 8.1.3 have been satisfied.  The 
Planning Commission must review “Basis for Determination for SUP#16-281” dated October 4, 
2016 (attached) and make a determination regarding compliance with each finding.  



SUP #16-281 5822 Harper Road 
Page 6  Contractor’s Office 

Section 8.1.3 Basis for Determination  
SUP #16-281 - 5822 Hogsback Road 

 
Section 8.1.3(1)(a) Be harmonious and in accordance with the general principals and 
proposals of the Master Plan. 
 
The Future Land Use Map calls for this property to continue with Rural Residential land uses.  
This includes implementation using the A-1: Agricultural zoning district, which requires a 
minimum lot size of 40,000 SF.   
  
Section 8.1.3(1)(b) Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be 
harmonious in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and 
that such a use will not change the essential character of the area in which it is proposed. 
 
The conditions placed on the SUP should help to ensure that the Contractor’s Office is operated 
in a manner that is harmonious with the appearance of surrounding areas and the character of 
properties in the vicinity.   
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(c) Not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future uses in the same 
general vicinity and will be a substantial improvement to the property in the immediate 
vicinity and to the community as a whole. 
 
The inclusion of conditions on the approved SUP is expected to mitigate any potential negative 
impacts that could occur. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(d) Be served adequately by essential public services, such as highways, 
streets, police, fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewage 
facilities, or schools. 
 
There are no public utilities available to the property, but it has access to Harper Road which is 
public.  Police and fire are expected to be adequate.  The conditions placed on the SUP are 
expected to mitigate any potential negative impacts. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(e) Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials and equipment or 
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any person, property or general welfare 
by reason of excess production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 
 
See 8.1.3(1)(c) above. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(f) be consistent with the intent and purposes of the zoning district in which it 
is proposed to locate such use. 
 



SUP #16-281 5822 Harper Road 
Page 7  Contractor’s Office 
The A-1: Agricultural Zoning District provides that Contractor’s Offices can be permitted with the 
issuance of a SUP.  The conditions proposed on the SUP are expected to ensure that the land use 
is consistent with the intent and purpose of the A-1 district. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(g) Be designed to protect natural resources, the health, safety, welfare, and 
social and economic well-being of those who will use the land use or activity, and the 
community as a whole. 
 
Provided the SUP conditions are complied with no negative impacts to the health, safety, 
welfare, etc. as outlined in 8.1.3(1)(g) above are anticipated to occur.  
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(h) Be related to the valid exercise of the police power and purposes which 
are affected by imposed use of activity. 
 
The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act provides the Township with the ability to require Special Use 
Permits for those uses that have the possibility of creating unacceptable or difficult 
circumstances for the community.  As such the requirement that the proposed contractor’s 
office receive an approved SUP is a valid exercise of police power. 
 
Section 8.1.3(1)(i) Be necessary to meet the intent and purpose of the zoning ordinance, be 
related to the standards established in the ordinance for the land use or activity under 
consideration, and be necessary to insure compliance with those standards. 
 
See 8.1.3(1)(h) above. 
 
Section 8.1.3(2) Conditions and Safeguards: The Planning Commission may impose such 
additional conditions and safeguards deemed necessary for the general welfare, for the 
protection of individual property rights and for insuring that the intent and objectives of this 
Ordinance will be observed.  The breach of any condition, safeguard, or requirement shall 
automatically invalidate the permit granted. 
 
See 8.1.3(1)(g) above.  
 
Section 8.1.3(3) Specific Requirements: The general standards and requirements of the 
Section are basic to all uses authorized by Special Use Permit.  The specific and detailed 
requirements set forth in the following Sections relate to particular uses and are 
requirements which must be met by those uses in addition to the foregoing general 
standards and requirements where applicable. 
 
See 8.1.3(2) above. 
 
Date:  October 4, 2016 













DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
TO:  Delhi Township Board Members 
 
FROM: John B. Elsinga, Township Manager 
 
DATE: October 12, 2016 
 
RE: Interagency Cash Transfer Agreement between Delhi Township 

and Michigan Rehabilitation Services  
 
 
Enclosed for your review and approval is an “Interagency Cash Transfer 
Agreement” between Delhi Township and Michigan Rehabilitation Services 
(MRS) for the fiscal year 2016-2017.  This Agreement mirrors the ones approved 
by the Board for the 2013-2016 State of Michigan fiscal years. 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to enable the Township to provide MRS non-
federal share monies ($20,250) as a match for MRS to receive federal funding 
($54,750).  Together these funds ($75,000) support a cooperative relationship 
between MRS and the Township to improve vocational rehabilitation services to 
persons with disabilities with the ultimate goal of achieving successful 
employment.  This program will also ensure the provisions of independent living 
services are available to MRS customers if needed. 
 
The primary role of Delhi Township is to act as the fiduciary agent. Delhi 
Township will receive $20,250 from the Capital Area Center for Independent 
Living (CACIL) and transfer only those funds to ensure MRS receives their 
federal funding support.  No other source of Township funds can be used for the 
purpose of this Agreement. 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
To approve the Interagency Cash Transfer Agreement between 
Delhi Charter Township and Michigan Rehabilitation Services 
and authorize the Township Manager to execute the Agreement 
on behalf of the Township. 

























DELHI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
TO:  Delhi Township Board Members 
 
FROM: John B. Elsinga, Township Manager 
 
DATE: September 29, 2016 
 
RE: Amendment No. 1 to Resolution No. 2016-020 – Consumers 

Energy Change in Standard Streetlighting Contract – Request No. 
1020982336 – Audit of Streetlights in Delhi Township 

 
 
Enclosed for your review and consideration is Amendment No. 1 to Resolution 
No. 2016-020, which amends the results of an audit conducted by Consumers 
Energy and the subsequent refund to be issued for overpayment. 
 
At the September 20, 2016 Board meeting, the Township Board adopted 
Resolution No. 2016-020 which adjusted the Township’s streetlight account 
according to an audit conducted by Consumers Energy.  Upon receipt of that 
Resolution, Consumers Energy informed us that the wrong Resolution was 
inadvertently signed and returned.  Consumers had changed the streetlight 
contract several times through this one year process as maps were continuously 
updated and verified.  While the Township did verify the most recent and 
accurate maps and streetlight count, the actual resolution and refund information 
was an outdated one.  Therefore, Consumers has provided the Township with 
the correct Resolution which includes a refund of $12,613.83. 
 
Therefore, I recommend the Board approve Amendment No. 1 to Resolution No. 
2016-020 which adjusts the Township’s streetlight account according to the audit 
conducted by Consumers Energy.   
 
 
Recommended Motion:   
 
To adopt Amendment No. 1 to Resolution No. 2016-020, which 
approves Consumers Energy Request No. 1020982336 for a 
change in the Standard Streetlighting Contract between Delhi 
Township and Consumers Energy which will adjust the 
Township’s streetlight account according to a recent audit 
conducted by Consumers Energy. 







Tricia
Text Box
    AMENDMENT NO. 1

Tricia
Text Box
NO. 2016-020





 

 

 
 
                           

 

9)  Supervisor’s Report 
   

 

10) Treasurer’s Report 
  

 

11) Clerk’s Report 
   
              

12)  Trustee Reports 
 
13) Manager’s Report 

 

     


	Committee Agenda
	A - Sheriffs Report
	B - Fire Report
	C - Comm Dev Report

	Board Agenda
	7:45 Public Hearing - Budget
	1 - Consent Agenda
	1a - Committee Minutes
	1b - Board Minutes
	1c - Accts Payable
	1d - Payroll Approval
	1e - 2017 Holiday Schedule

	2 - SUP 16-280
	3 - SUP 16-281
	4 - MRS Agreegment
	5 - Amend 1 to Res 2016-020
	9 - Supervisor's Report
	10 - Treasurer's Report
	11 - Clerk's Report
	12 - Trustee Reports
	13 - Manager's Report




